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FINANCIAL RIGHLIGHTS

2017 2016
Results HK$ Million HK$ Million

Revenue 1,757 1,535
Profit before depreciation, amortisation, interest and tax 236 210
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 155 125
Basic earnings per share HK31.0 cents HK25.0 cents
Dividend per share
— Interim HK15 cents HK12 cents
— Final HK6 cents HK5 cents
Financial Position HK$ Million HK$ Million
Total assets 1,529 1,559
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 143 198
Shareholders’ equity 1,110 1,099
Net assets per share HK$2.22 HK$2.20
Revenue Profit Attributable to Owners
HK$ Million HK$ Million
155
125
1,757 105
1,444 1484 1517 1,535
73
I
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”)
of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
(the "Company”), | am pleased to present to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended
31 March 2017.

o

GLOBAL ECONOMY

Global economic growth lost steam in 2016, as the
performances of major economies such as the United
States, Europe and Japan fell short of expectations,
while the growth drivers of Mainland China continued
to weaken resulting from industrial revolution and
transformation. The impact of Brexit, supported by
a referendum in June, was meanwhile felt in the
global financial and trade markets with uncertainties
undermining consumers’ and investors’ confidence,
leading to a low rate of economic growth. According
to the economic forecasts published by IHS Global
Insight, global economic growth for 2016 shrank to
2.4%, being the lowest growth rate recorded since
the global financial tsunami in 2008. In the United
States, Donald Trump signed an executive order to
withdraw from the “Trans-Pacific Partnership” (TPP)
in January 2017 immediately after he took office as
President, in fulfilment of a pledge he had made
during the election campaign. As it is anticipated
that the economies of other nations could also be
benefiting from President Trump’s “America First”
expansionary fiscal policy which is expected to
stimulate domestic demand in the United States,
global economic performance in 2017 will hopefully
fare better as compared to 2016. Nonetheless,
international trade and geopolitics are subject to
increasing uncertainties in connection with U.S.
interest rate hikes and the economic and trade
policies of the new administration, emerging market
debt risks, the impact of Brexit on the political and
economic developments of the European Union,
trade protectionism and the rise of populism. Despite
potential challenges in the global market, the Group
delivered satisfactory results for the year under
review.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

INDUSTRY REVIEW

The evolution of lifestyles would inevitably give rise to
new patterns of consumption. In Europe and America,
activities such as gym workouts and run-mates have
become favourite off-hour pastimes, underpinning stronger
aspirations for fashionable and healthy lifestyles on the
part of consumers. Sportswear has gradually become a
common sight in places beyond the fitness centre and
the sports ground. The term “Athleisure” has even been
entered into the century-old Merriam-Webster’s Collegiate
Dictionary, evidencing the increasing emphasis on sports.
Following the announcement of “Certain Opinion on
Accelerating the Development of the Sporting Industry and
Promoting Retail Spending on Sports” ([ &8I0k 3% = 2
BFEZRELEHEENS TEER]) by the government in
2014 setting out favourable policies for the industry, more
comprehensive supporting facilities for the sporting sector
in China have been put in place, fueling strong growth for
the nation’s sportswear market.

On a global basis, the sportswear market is holding out
further potential for growth. According to the data from
Deutsche Bank, from 2008 to 2015, the average growth
rate of sportswear was 4.1%, while non-sporting brands
only grew by 0.2%. It is expected that the worth of
the global market of leisure sportswear would increase
substantially to over US$350 billion by 2020 from the
amount of approximately US$300 billion in 2016. In the
future, the Group will work in close tandem with the
general market trend to increase the production of leisure
sportswear in addition to its existing lines of sportswear, in
order to seize any future opportunities arising.

BUSINESS AND MARKET REVIEW

Upgrade and transformation, manufacturing of
high-end apparel and automation

The Group continued to increase the weighting of high-end
woven sportswear in its production, with a special focus
on enhancing skills training at the production bases of
Jiangxi (the “Jiangxi Plant”) and Indonesia (the “Indonesian
Plant”) to improve production technologies for future
development. The two production bases have basically
mastered the production technologies of manufacturing
medium- to high-end apparel during the year under review.
Furthermore, as the Group’s pilot plants for mechanised
and automated production, the two production bases
have achieved satisfactory results in terms of shortening
training hours and improving production efficiency. In the
future, the Group’s management will gradually expand to
implement mechanised and automated production to cover
all production bases, taking into account the needs of each
production base.

Expansion of overseas production bases

To address the issues of labour shortage due to
demographic changes in China, which have aggravated
costing pressure for the Group and affected its capacity
plans, the Group has been making vigorous efforts in the
past years to build production bases outside China. In this
connection, the construction of hardware components,
plant expansion and installation of manufacturing
equipment for future capacity expansion in the second-
phase expansion of the Indonesian Plant were completed in
early 2017. The recruitment and training of new local staff
started before the end of the financial year and increased
production capacity for the Group is expected to come on
stream in the second half of the forthcoming financial year.
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Rising labour costs

Following the massive relocation of manufacturers to
Southeast Asian regions for more abundant labour supply
at lower costs in view of rapidly rising labour costs
and shortage of labour supply in China, labour costs in
Indonesia have also been on the rise in recent years on
the back of rapidly rising wages and stronger exchange
rates for the Indonesian currency. While labour costs in
Indonesia remain lower as compared to China, the Group
would nevertheless be subject to costing pressure in the
future. During the year under review, the Group continued
to exercise stringent cost control and adopt measures to
optimise lean production, while investing in mechanised
and automated production to increase the level of
automation at various plants, in order to mitigate the
impact of labour costs.

Process optimisation

During the year, the Group adopted measures to optimise
its overall operating processes. The headquarters provided
stronger business support to the Indonesian Plant to help
local management and staff deal with new challenges
arising from capacity expansion and alleviate pressure
on operations resulting from increased sales orders from
customers. In the meantime, training was provided to the
local management to prepare them for dealing with future
challenge and enhance overall operating efficiency.

OUTLOOK

Efficiency upgrade and capacity enhancement

In anticipation of continuously rising labour costs in the
future, and in order to shorten the lead-time for training
in production technologies for high-end sportswear to
expedite capacity expansion, the management upgraded
certain production lines at the Jiangxi Plant and the
Indonesian Plant to automated and mechanised production
facilities on an experimental basis during the financial
year under review. Notable results have been achieved
and plans have been made to increase the percentage of
automation for all production bases of the Group in near
future, with a view to enhancing production efficiency and
shortening training hours for production workers.

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

New business centre to optimize distribution of
customers’ orders

The Group has established longstanding sound relationships
with its customers, who have been very supportive of the
Group’s development. The Group has plans to open a
business centre at the Jiangxi Plant to lay the foundation
for the future business development of the Jiangxi Plant,
which provides the driving force for the Group’s growth in
the long run.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group believes that the sustainable development
of an enterprise is closely associated with the society
and environment. We attach a lot of importance to the
interests of the society as a whole and its long-term
development and undertake social responsibilities as part
of the effort to enhance our core competitive strengths.

The Group was awarded a “Happy Company Label” by the
“Promoting Happiness Index Foundation” of Hong Kong,
as it pledged to foster a “Happy Workplace” and increase
the level of "happiness at work” among employees,
in order to boost staff morale and promote a positive
outlook on life. During the year, the people of the Group
participated in activities organized by the Foundation, such
as seminars, learning groups, workshops and volunteers’
services, in a joint effort for the promotion of positive
values and healthy lifestyles.

During the Chinese New Year, our staff, together with
their families, continued to support the Barefoot Walk
organised by World Vision for the support of South
Sudan, a place which has been plagued by civil war
since 2013. We helped families and children battered by
devastating warfare, while supporting the nutrition and
hygiene projects launched by World Vision in South Sudan
to provide assistance to the needy and encourage more
people care for the world.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express profound
gratitude to the Board and the management for their
invaluable contributions during the year, and to our
shareholders, suppliers, business partners and customers
for their support. Sincere appreciation is also due to all
members of our staff for their dedicated efforts during the
past year.

Chung Yuk Sing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 June 2017



rﬂ EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED [ 35 (EIBR) =R B R A ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =—Z—HLF &R

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GEOGRAPHICAL REVENUE DISTRIBUTION
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year under review, total sales of the Group
amounted to HK$1,757.3 million, representing an
increase of 14.5% as compared to total sales of
HK$1,534.6 million in last year. Gross profit for the
year increased by 4.5% to HK$320.9 million (2016:
HK$306.9 million), and gross profit margin for the year
dropped by 1.7% from 20.0% to 18.3%. The Group's
profit before tax increased by 21.7% to HK$185.2
million (2016: HK$152.2 million), and profit before tax
margin also increased by 0.6% from 9.9% to 10.5%.

Given increasing production capacity of the Group
bolstered by expansion of production scale, coupled
with on-going optimisation of marketing strategies,
concentration on production of high-end products by
the Group over the past few years, the average selling
price per unit has steadily grown. A record high of total
sales of HK$1,757.3 million was achieved for the vyear,
representing an increase of 14.5% over that for the
previous year. Nevertheless, most of the functional high-
end products sold during the year required higher cost
of materials. To stay price competitive, the selling prices
of the high-end products were unable to fully cover the
increase in cost of materials, resulting in a decline in
gross profit margin. With economies of scale enjoyed
from expansion of production scale of the Group, on-
going optimisation of production plan and process as
well as employment of automation technology by the
management, production efficiency has been enhanced
with lower production costs, partially offsetting the
decline in gross profit margin due to the rise of cost of
materials.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

As a result of the increase in sales, the Group's selling
and distribution expenses increased by HK$3.9 million (or
20.7%). Its proportion to total sales for the year was
comparable to that of last year. Overall administrative
expenses decreased by HK$1.2 million, mainly due to
staff costs increased by HK$2.3 million and depreciation
charge reduced by HK$2.9 million as a result of disposal
or full depreciation of certain items of property, plant
and equipment. As the average outstanding balance of
bank loans during the year and the average interest rate
on bank loans during the year were similar to those in
the last year, interest expense for the year was in line
with that in the previous year. In respect of taxation,
the Group's overall tax expenses increased by HK$3.0
million (or 11.0%) while the effective tax rate decreased
by 1.6% to 16.2% from 17.8%. Although there was
under-provision of tax of HK$3.3 million in previous
years incurred by an overseas subsidiary during the year,
the accumulated tax losses incurred in the past years by
the Jiangxi Plant which commenced production in 2012
brought about a deferred tax income of HK$9.3 million,
leading to a decrease in effective tax rate of the Group
in the current year.

Other income and gains of HK$17.6 million (2016:
HK$11.1 million) mainly comprised financial award
granted by the Government of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) amounting to HK$8.3 million
(2016: HK$4.7 million), gains on disposal of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid land lease payments
amounting to HK$5.9 million (2016: HK$1.9 million) and
bank interest income of HK$2.1 million (2016: HK$2.5
million).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to HK$155.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2017, representing an increase of 24.0% compared
to HK$125.1 million for last year. Net profit margin
increased by 0.6% from 8.2% to 8.8% compared
with last year. Basic earnings per share for the year
amounted to HK31.0 cents compared to HK25.0 cents
for last year. The Board proposed to recommend
payment of a final dividend of HK6 cents (2016: HK5
cents) per share. Together with the interim dividend of
HK15 cents per share paid during the year, the dividend
payout ratio for the year was 67.6% (2016: 67.9%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year under review, the Group continued
to maintain a healthy liquidity position. The Group
generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources and banking facilities. As at 31
March 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$290.9 million (31 March 2016:
HK$255.4 million) mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi (“RMB"”), US dollars and Indonesian
Rupiah.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s banking facilities
were supported by the corporate guarantees executed
by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Company to the extent of HK$647.8 million (31 March
2016: HK$597.4 million), of which an aggregate amount
of HK$143.1 million (31 March 2016: HK$197.9 million)
was utilised.

The management believes that the Group’s existing
financial resources will be sufficient to meet its existing
operations as well as existing and future expansion
plans and, if necessary, the Group will be able to
obtain additional financing with favourable terms. There
is no material effect of seasonality on the Group’s
borrowing requirements.

Gearing ratio of the Group is defined as the net debt
(represented by bank borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) divided by shareholders’ equity. The Group's
gearing ratios as at 31 March 2017 is not applicable (31
March 2016: not applicable).

10

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has transactional currency exposures
as substantial portion of sales or purchases are
denominated in US dollars and RMB. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from such
exposure to US dollars and RMB. Although the Group
tries to maintain the balance of its sales and purchases
in the same currency, as the foreign currency risks
generated from the sales and purchases can only be
partially set off with each other, financial instrument
may be employed when necessary to manage the
Group’s exposure to the potential exchange rate risk.

The Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposures and use appropriate tools to manage and
minimise its foreign exchange risk.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
There was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2017.
During the year ended 31 March 2016, there was a
deregistration of a subsidiary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: Nil). The Group
had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
Contracted, but not provided for:
Construction of factories and purchases of machinery and equipment
for the investment in Jiangxi Province, the PRC 14,471 354
Construction of factories and purchases of machinery and equipment
for the investment in Indonesia 2,578 10,035
Purchases of items of machinery and equipment 4,006 863
21,055 11,252

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s banking facilities were supported by the corporate guarantees executed by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company to the extent of HK$647.8 million (31 March 2016: HK$597.4
million), of which an aggregate amount of HK$143.1 million (31 March 2016: HK$197.9 million) was utilised.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group employed a total of
approximately 8,600 employees including directors (31
March 2016: approximately 8,800). Total employee
benefit expenses including directors’ and chief
executive's emoluments were HK$451.6 million for the
year under review (2016: HK$414.8 million).

11

The employees including directors are remunerated
based on their work performance, professional
experiences and the prevailing industry practice. The
Group also makes contributions to the statutory
mandatory provident fund scheme and defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme for the
employees of the Group in Hong Kong and to the
pension scheme for the employees of the Group in the
PRC and Indonesia.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chung Yuk Sing, aged 56, has been the Chairman of the Board and Executive Director of the Company since
October 2002. He has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since June 2013. He is the
founder of the Group and a director of other members of the Group. Mr. Chung provides leadership to the Board
and is responsible for corporate development. He has been accredited as “Honorary Citizen of Shantou City” in
the PRC. Mr. Chung holds several public positions, including the Honorary President of Shantou Overseas Sodality,
Honorary President of Shantou Overseas Communication Association and Honorary President of Social Security and
Welfare Association of Lunghu, Shantou City.

Chen Hsiao Ying, aged 53, has joined the Group as Executive Director of the Company since October 2007. He
was Chief Executive Officer of the Company from October 2007 to June 2013. He has been appointed as the Vice
Chairman of the Board since August 2013. He is also a director of other members of the Group. Mr. Chen had
worked as Factory Manager in a sportswear manufacturing and trading company in Taiwan since 1981 prior to
founding Actex Garment Co., Limited, a company specializing in the manufacturing and trading of sportswear, in
1997. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of manufacturing and management experience in the garment industry. He is
in charge of the corporate strategy, management, business development and manufacturing management of the
Group. He is a brother of Ms. Chen Li Ying, a member of senior management of the Group.

Kuo Tai Yu, aged 67, joined the Group as Executive Director of the Company in April 2004 and resigned from
the position in September 2016. Mr. Kuo has over 30 years of experience in management of footwear business in
Taiwan. He received a bachelor’s degree from Chung Hsing University in Taiwan. Mr. Kuo had been the director of
Pou Chen Corporation (stock code: 9904) (“Pou Chen”), a company listed on the stock exchange of Taiwan until
June 2013. He had been the director of certain subsidiaries of Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
00551) (“Yue Yuen”), a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) from February 1996 to March 2016. He worked as the general manager of the garment department of
Yue Yuen in charge of development and integration of garment manufacturing from December 2012 to June 2016.

Chen Fang Mei, Christina, aged 54, has joined the Group as Executive Director of the Company since May 2009.
She is responsible for overseeing the financial matters of the Group. She had been the Spokesperson and Vice
President of Pou Chen during 2004 to 2013. She graduated from Soochow University in Taiwan in 1986 and holds
a Bachelor's Degree in International Business. Ms. Chen was Vice President and Head of Underwriting of Citibank
Securities (Taiwan) Limited from 2001 to 2004. She has over 20 years of experience in the investment and securities
industries in Taiwan. Ms. Chen had been an executive director of Symphony Holdings Limited (stock code: 01223), a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange from July 2009 to June 2015.

Lee Cheng Chuan, aged 53, has joined the Group as Executive Director of the Company since September 2016. He
is currently Vice President of Yue Yuen and its subsidiaries (the “Yue Yuen Group”). He joined Pou Chen and Yue
Yuen Group in 1989 and is currently in charge of the integration of garment manufacturing business of Yue Yuen
Group. Mr. Lee is also a director of certain subsidiaries of Yue Yuen. He is also a director of Din Tsun Holding Co.
Ltd., a company which is held as to 50% by Yue Yuen and the remaining 50% by a third party corporation. Mr.
Lee graduated from National Taipei Institute of Technology (now known as National Taipei University of Technology)
in Taiwan in 1986. Mr. Lee has over 25 years of experience in the business development and production
management of international branded footwear market.

12
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Directors” and Senior Management’s Biographies (continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chan Cheuk Ho, aged 50, obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1989 and a master’s degree in business administration from the University of Manchester in 2003.
Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2003. In the past
twenty years, Mr. Chan was the finance director, financial controller and company secretary of several companies
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. He is currently an executive director and company secretary of
Pine Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 01079), a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
He has been Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since November 2002.

Lu Chi Chant, aged 65, is currently an independent director of Li Peng Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Lealea Enterprise
Co., Ltd., all companies listed on the stock exchange of Taiwan. He was an independent director of K Laser
Technology Inc., a company listed on the stock exchange of Taiwan, from June 2014 to May 2017. He is also an
independent director of Nyquest Technology Co., Ltd.,, a company listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market.
Mr. Lu has been an independent non-executive director of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (stock code:
00157), a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange since December 2015. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Mechanical Engineering from National Taiwan University in 1974 and passed the professional qualification
examinations in Taiwan for certified public accountant in 1983 and for securities investment analyst in 1988.
During the period from 1976 to 1984, Mr. Lu worked as a mechanical engineer in Formosa Plastics Corporation,
a company established in Taiwan principally engaged in the manufacturing of plastic raw materials and products.
He joined Deloitte & Touche Taiwan as an auditor in 1984 and where he became a partner in 1986. Mr. Lu left
Deloitte & Touche Taiwan in 2011. He has been appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since February 2013.

Cheng Yung Hui, Tony, aged 75, is the chairman and chief executive officer of World Friendship Company
Limited. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years of experience in operating his own company. He has extensive experience
in international business. He was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in September
2004 and resigned from the position in September 2016.

Tham Kit Wan, aged 56, is a qualified lawyer of Hong Kong, England and Wales and Singapore. Ms. Tham
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Laws from The National University of Singapore in June 1983 and a degree of
Master of Laws (International Business Law) from The City University of Hong Kong in November 2006. She has
more than 25 years of experience in corporate finance and the commercial and banking fields. She was a director
of Union Bank of Hong Kong Limited (formerly traded under the stock code: 349 of the Stock Exchange) and Union
Bank Finance Limited from 1989 to 1993. She was the Head of Legal Department of K. Wah Construction Materials
Limited (now known as Galaxy Entertainment Group (stock code: 00027)), a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange from 1998 to 2007. She served as Legal Counsel and Senior Vice President of Symphony
Holdings Limited (stock code: 01223), a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange from 2007 to
2015. From 2014 to 2015, she also served as Company Secretary of Pak Tak International Limited (stock code:
02668), a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Currently, she is in private legal practice as a
consultant at Messrs. David Lo & Partners, a law firm in Hong Kong. She has served as the Company’s Independent
Non-Executive Director since September 2016.

13
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Directors” and Senior Management’s Biographies (continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Tsai Nai Chung, aged 61, has joined the Group as Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company since July 2013.
Mr. Tsai has over 30 years of manufacturing and management experience in shoes and apparel manufacturing
industry. Mr. Tsai had been President and Vice President of certain companies within the Yue Yuen Group. By
managing the factories in USA, Mexico, the PRC and Vietnam of Yue Yuen, he has extensive and global experience
in manufacturing industry.

Chung Chi Kit, aged 28, joined the Group as Special Assistant to Chairman in April 2015 and was promoted
to Business Managing Director in March 2016. He is responsible for business planning and development of the
Group. He was the Chief Executive Officer of a wine distribution company up to March 2015. He graduated from
Nottingham Trent University in 2011 and holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accounting and Finance. He obtained a
master’s degree in Marketing and a master’s degree in International Business from the Royal Holloway, University of
London and Hult International Business School in 2012 and 2013 respectively. He is the son of Mr. Chung Yuk Sing,
the Chairman of the Board and Executive Director of the Company.

Tsang Sau Fan, aged 50, has joined the Group since March 1996. She was Executive Director of the Company
from October 2002 to May 2009. Currently, she is General Manager of the Group and is responsible for sales and
marketing and administrative management of the Group. She has over 20 years of experience in sales of garment
products. Prior to joining the Group, she worked as a merchandiser in a garment manufacturing company in Hong
Kong.

Chen Li Ying, aged 62, has joined the Group since October 2007. She was Executive Director of the Company
from October 2007 to May 2009. Currently, she is General Manager of the Group and is responsible for sales and
marketing and manufacturing management of the Group. She is also a director of other members of the Group.
She graduated from Ming Chuan University in Taiwan and had worked as an auditor in an accounting firm in
Taiwan for around 5 years after graduation. She worked in the sales and marketing department of a sportswear
manufacturing and trading company in Taiwan from 1981 to 1996 before she joined Actex Garment Co., Limited,
a company founded by Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying, in 2001. She has over 25 years of manufacturing and management
experience in the garment industry. She is the sister of Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying, Executive Director of the Company.

Woo Man Chi, aged 45, has joined the Group as Financial Controller since May 2005 and has been appointed
as Company Secretary of the Company since September 2005. She is responsible for the accounting, finance and
compliance related functions of the Group. She previously worked in a reputable international accounting firm,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in Hong Kong for five years. Prior to joining the Group, she worked in a manufacturing
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange as Assistant Financial Controller. She has more than 15
years of experience in accounting and financial management. Ms. Woo holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. She is a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of
the Company are set out in note 1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the state of affairs of the Group’s financial position at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 76 to 156.

An interim dividend of HK15 cents per ordinary share was paid on 16 December 2016. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK6 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders whose
names are on the register of members on 25 August 2017. Details are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements is set out below.

Results
Year ended 31 March

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue 1,757,316 1,534,592 1,517,109 1,483,774 1,443,994
Profit before tax 185,155 152,186 130,311 37,232 94,606
Income tax expense (30,036) (27,057) (25,128) (15,362) (21,568)
Profit for the year 155,119 125,129 105,183 21,870 73,038

Assets and liabilities

As at 31 March

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current assets 763,544 778,679 812,854 856,587 894,245
Current assets 765,170 779,840 756,567 698,965 745,403
Current liabilities (395,347) (439,152) (462,019) (526,636) (607,638)
Net current assets 369,823 340,688 294,548 172,329 137,765
Non-current liabilities (23,018) (20,017) (19,871) (16,999) (16,528)

1,110,349 1,099,350 1,087,531 1,011,917 1,015,482

The above summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in either the authorised or issued share capital of the Company during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$794,440,000. The amount of HK$794,440,000
includes the Company’'s share premium account and capital reserve of HK$515,674,000 in aggregate at 31 March
2017, which may be distributed provided that immediately following the date on which a dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 99.5% of
the Group's total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately
56.2%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 27.9% of the Group’s total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately 9.1%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,

own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chung Yuk Sing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Kuo Tai Yu (resigned on 15 September 2016)

Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina

Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan (appointed on 15 September 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho

Mr. Lu Chi Chant

Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony (resigned on 1 September 2016)
Ms. Tham Kit Wan (appointed on 1 September 2016)

In accordance with article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying and Ms. Chen Fang
Mei, Christina will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. In accordance with article 86(3) of the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Lee Cheng
Chuan and Ms. Tham Kit Wan, who were appointed during the year to fill a causal vacancy, shall hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all independent non-executive directors, Mr.
Chan Cheuk Ho, Mr. Lu Chi Chant and Ms. Tham Kit Wan, and as at the date of this report still considers them to
be independent.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 12 to 14 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Group’s emolument policy is formulated based on the performance of individual employees and is reviewed
regularly. Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also provide discretionary bonuses to its employees
as an incentive for their contribution to the Group. The primary goal of the emolument policy with regard to the
remuneration packages of the Group's executive directors is to enable the Group to retain and motivate executive
directors by linking their compensation with performance as measured against corporate objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group’s remuneration packages include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses and
housing benefits.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval and the Board was authorised to fix the directors’ fee at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance, and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of association of the Company provides that for the time being acting in relation to any of the affairs
of the Company, every Director and other officers shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, losses, damages and expenses which they
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done about the execution of the duties of their respective office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company had arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and other officers of the Group for the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive in the share capital and
underlying shares of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), which have been notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which any such Directors or chief executive
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”), were as follows:

The Company

Number of shares held Percentage of

Long Short the Company’s

Name of Director Capacity position position issued capital

Mr. Chung Yuk Sing Interest in a controlled corporation 72,650,000 — 14.54
(Note)

Beneficial owner 8,100,000 — 1.62

Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying Beneficial owner 26,100,800 — 5.22

Note: These shares are held by Time Easy Investment Holdings Limited (“Time Easy”). The entire issued share capital of Time Easy is held
by Mr. Chung Yuk Sing.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors and chief executive had registered an interest
or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the following persons, other than the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to
the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Number of ordinary

shares held Percentage of
Long Short the Company’s
Name Capacity position position issued capital
Time Easy Beneficial owner 72,650,000 — 14.54
(Note 1)
Pou Chen Corporation Interest in a controlled corporation 192,000,000 — 38.42
("Pou Chen") (Note 2)
Wealthplus Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 192,000,000 — 38.42
Limited (“Wealthplus"”) (Note 2)
Yue Yuen Industrial Interest in a controlled corporation 192,000,000 — 38.42
(Holdings) Limited (Note 2)
("Yue Yuen")
Pou Hing Industrial Co. Interest in a controlled corporation 192,000,000 — 38.42
Ltd. (“Pou Hing”) (Note 2)
Great Pacific Investments  Beneficial owner 192,000,000 — 38.42
Limited (“Great Pacific”) (Note 2)
Notes:
1. The entire issued share capital of Time Easy is held by Mr. Chung Yuk Sing.

2. The 192,000,000 shares were held by Great Pacific which was wholly-owned by Pou Hing. The entire issued share capital of Pou
Hing was held by Yue Yuen in which Wealthplus and Win Fortune Investment Ltd. (“Win Fortune”) held an interest of 46.89%
and 3.09% respectively. Wealthplus and Win Fortune are in turn wholly-owned by Pou Chen. Accordingly, Pou Hing, Yue Yuen,
Wealthplus, Win Fortune and Pou Chen are all deemed to be interested in the 192,000,000 shares held by Great Pacific.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no person, other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS
Interests of the Directors in a competing business required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) is as follows:

Nature of
competing Appointment
Name of Director Name of company business Nature of interest date
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan Yue Yuen (Note 1) Garment As a vice president June 2014
("Mr. Lee") manufacturing
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Din Tsun Holding Garment As a director April 2011
Christina (“Ms. Chen") Co., Ltd. ("Din Tsun") manufacturing
Mr. Lee (Note 2) As a director August 2016
Ms. Chen Faith Year Investments Garment As a director August 2010
Mr. Lee Limited (“Faith Year"”) manufacturing As a director August 2016
(Note 2)
Ms. Chen Pro Kingtex Industrial Garment As a director August 2010
Mr. Lee Co., (HK) Ltd. manufacturing As a director August 2016
("Pro Kingtex”) (Note 2)
Mr. Lee Tien Pou International Ltd Garment As a director October 2016
("Tien Pou”) (Note 3) manufacturing

Notes:

Yue Yuen is a company listed on the Stock Exchange and is a substantial shareholder of the Company. The principal business
activities of Yue Yuen and its subsidiaries (the “Yue Yuen Group”) are manufacturing and sales of footwear products, and retail
and distribution of sportswear products. Based on the published annual report of Yue Yuen, Yue Yuen recorded total revenue
of more than US$6.0 billion for its footwear manufacturing business for the year ended 31 December 2016. As the Group is
principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of sportswear and garments, the businesses of the Yue Yuen Group and the
Group potentially compete with each other.

Given that the Yue Yuen Group and the Group are operated by different and separate management team, the Directors consider
that the Company is capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length with the Yue Yuen Group. After
considering the nature and extent of Mr. Lee's participation in business of the Yue Yuen Group and the Group, the Directors
believed that there was unlikely to be any significant competition caused to the business of the Group.

Din Tsun is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 4 January 2005 and is held as to 50% by the Yue Yuen Group
and 50% by two individuals. Din Tsun and the Yue Yuen Group hold 70% and 30% of the issued share capital of Faith Year
respectively which in turn wholly-owns Pro Kingtex. Din Tsun and its subsidiaries (the “Din Tsun Group"”) are investee companies of
the Yue Yuen Group. The principal business activities of the Din Tsun Group are apparel manufacturing of sportswear, casual and
outdoor clothes. Based on information provided by the Din Tsun Group, it recorded over US$255 million in revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Mr. Lee was appointed as director of Din Tsun, Faith Year and Pro Kingtex in Aug 2016. Currently, both
Ms. Chen and Mr. Lee have been nominated to the board of directors of Din Tsun, Faith Year and Pro Kingtex to represent the
interest of the Yue Yuen Group as an investor.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

2. (continued)
While Ms. Chen is not involved in the operation of the Din Tsun Group, Mr. Lee participates in the apparel manufacturing business
of the Din Tsun Group. Mr. Lee has confirmed that he is mindful of his duty to avoid conflict of interest. In cases where conflict
of interest situation arises, Mr. Lee will refrain from taking part in the decision making process and will abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution in board meeting. On this basis and given that the Din Tsun Group has its own management personnel other
than Mr. Lee and that Ms. Chen is not involved in its operations, the Directors believe that the Company is capable of carrying on
its business independently of, and at arm’s length from the Ding Tsun Group.

3. Tien Pou is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 June 2016 and is held as to 40% by the Yue Yuen Group and
60% by an independent corporation. The principal business activities of Tien Pou are apparel manufacturing of sportswear, casual
and outdoor clothes. Based on information provided by Tien Pou, it recorded over US$19 million in revenue for the period from
June 2016 to December 2016. Mr. Lee has been nominated to the board of directors of Tien Pou to represent the interest of the
Yue Yuen Group as an investor.

Given that Mr. Lee is not involved in the operation of Tien Pou, the Directors believe that the Company is capable of carrying on
its business independently of, and at arm’s length from Tien Pou.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their respective associates was interested in, apart from the
Group’s business, any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out in pages 23 to 33 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 including the challenges/uncertainties
and the ways to tackle them together with a discussion on the Group’s future development are set out in the
sections headed “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out
on page 3, pages 5 to 7 and pages 8 to 11 respectively of this annual report. Description of the risks faced by the
Group is found in note 33 to the financial statements.

Environmental policy and performance

The Group is committed to making contributions to sustainable development in different aspects, including
environmental protection. To ensure compliance with applicable environmental laws, we have developed a
comprehensive environmental policy for our operations. During the reporting period, the Group had been in
compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations of Hong Kong, Mainland China and Indonesia.

Details regarding the environmental, social and governance practices adopted by the Group will be set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report by way of a separate report to be published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company no later than three months after the publication of this annual report.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the reporting period, so far as the Company is aware, the Group had complied with all relevant laws and
regulations material to the operations of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Relationships with employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers and other stakeholders

The ongoing success of the Group is dependent on its stakeholders, including its employees, customers,
shareholders and suppliers. The Group regards its employees as important stakeholders and provides them with
competitive remuneration packages and other labour benefits in line with industry practices, a workplace conducive
to occupational health and safety, as well as in-service training on a continued basis.

The Group is committed to forging closer ties with its customers. We also consistently uphold and strengthen
our cooperation with suppliers, while maintaining communications with shareholders through, among others, our
corporate website (www.eaglenice.com.hk).

The Company communicates with shareholders and other stakeholders mainly through: (i) the convening of annual
general meetings which provides an opportunity for direct communication between the shareholders and the Board;
(i) the publication of announcements, annual and interim reports and/or circulars in accordance with the Listing
Rules, as well as press releases providing the latest updates on the Group’s development; and (iii) the website of
the Company which provides the latest information of the Group.

Event after the Reporting Period
No significant event of the Group occurred after the end of the reporting period.

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chung Yuk Sing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 June 2017

22



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —F—tF 4%, EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED [ 3E (B R) =B IR A Al r’

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles
of transparency, accountability and independence. The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance practices.
The Company had, throughout the year ended 31 March 2017, complied with the code provisions of the CG
Code except for the deviations specified with considered reasons for such deviations as explained in this corporate
governance report.

1. DIRECTORS

a. Board’s Composition & Board Meetings
The composition of the Board and the individual attendance of each Director at board meetings and the
annual general meeting ("AGM") during the year are set out as follows:

Number
of board
meetings
attended/ 2016
Name of Director held AGM
Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer) 5/5 11
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying (Vice Chairman) 5/5 11
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu (resigned on 15 September 2016) 2/3 0/1
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina 5/5 11
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan (appointed on 15 September 2016) 1/2 N/A
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho 4/5 1/1
Mr. Lu Chi Chant 5/5 1/1
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony (resigned on 1 September 2016) 2/3 0/1
Ms. Tham Kit Wan (appointed on 1 September 2016) 2/2 N/A

Biographical details of all Directors are disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior
Management'’s Biographies” in this annual report. To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships amongst members of the Board.

b. Independent Non-Executive Directors
At least one of the independent non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs”) has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of
the Listing Rules. The Group has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Group considered all of the INEDs to be
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

1.

DIRECTORS (continued)
b.

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)
Each of the INEDs was appointed for a term of three years with a formal letter of appointment setting
out the key terms and conditions of his/her appointment.

Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates, among other things, that the INEDs and other non-
executive directors of the Company should attend general meetings. Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony, an
INED, did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 August 2016 due to his
other commitments.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Chung Yuk Sing, who
has been the Chairman of the Board since 2002, was appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company with effect from 30 June 2013. Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, the Board considers
that the present structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Group as the Board assumes collective responsibility on the decision-making
process of the Company’s business strategies and operation. The principal divisions of the Group's
businesses are managed by different directors.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management

The Board has the collective responsibility for leadership and control of, and for promoting the
success of, the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board is responsible for
determining the overall strategy and corporate development and ensuring the business operations are
properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy matters of the Group and material
transactions.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and monitoring the operations of the
Group, in discharging its duties, certain responsibilities are delegated to:

i) the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Each committee’s constitution, powers and duties
are clearly defined by its terms of reference, and the committees are accountable to the Board;

i) the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-day management of the businesses of
the Group, is accountable to the Board; and

iii)  the senior management team of the Group, being delegated with the responsibilities to deal with
daily operational functions, is answerable to the Board.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of authority to ensure that such delegation

is appropriate in view of the Company’s prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting systems
are in place.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

1. DIRECTORS (continued)

e. Appointment, re-election and removal
Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and any Directors appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to the existing Board) and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

The appointment of new Directors and nomination of Directors for re-election at annual general
meetings are first considered by the Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. In considering the appointment of new Directors,
the Nomination Committee will assess the candidate according to the criteria set out in Rules 3.08 and 3.09
of the Listing Rules. In the case of a candidate for an INED, he/she should also meet the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

f.  Directors’ Securities Transactions
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

g. Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions against its
Directors and officers.

h. Continuing professional development

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each newly appointed Director would
receive an induction package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company. The Group also provides briefings and other training to
develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group continuously updates Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars
or guidance notes are issued to Directors and senior management to ensure awareness of corporate
governance practices.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

1.

DIRECTORS (continued)
h.

Continuing professional development (continued)
During the year, the Directors participated in the following trainings:

Type of
Trainings
Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing A,C
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying AC
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu (resigned on 15 September 2016) A,C
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina A,B,C
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan (appointed on 15 September 2016) A,B,C
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho A,B,C
Mr. Lu Chi Chant A,B,C
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony (resigned on 1 September 2016) C
Ms. Tham Kit Wan (appointed on 1 September 2016) A,B,C

A:  having training provided by the Company
B:  attending seminars/conferences/workshops/forums
C: reading newspapers/journals and updates relating to their profession and director’s responsibilities

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs. During the year under review, the Company Secretary has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy in December 2013. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity
at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. A truly diverse Board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience, background,
race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be considered in determining the
optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be balanced appropriately. All Board
appointments are made on merit and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will discuss annually for achieving diversity from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, skills, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and knowledge. The Nomination Committee will also conduct a review of the
policy periodically which will include an assessment of the effectiveness of the policy and recommend
any proposed changes to rectify identified deficiencies for the approval by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

2. BOARD COMMITTEES

a. Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director, namely, Mr. Chung Yuk Sing and two
INEDs, namely, Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho and Mr. Lu Chi Chant. Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to assist the Board in establishing a formal and
transparent procedure for setting policy on Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and to
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and
senior management (i.e. the model described in code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code was adopted)
as well as on the remuneration of INEDs by reference to the Company’s operation results, individual
performance and prevailing market rate.

The committee meets at least once a year. During the year under review, five committee meetings were
held. The attendance of the individual member of the Remuneration Committee at the meetings is set

out below:
Number of
meetings
Committee Members attended/held
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (Chairman) 5/5
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing 5/5
Mr. Lu Chi Chant 5/5

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year:

(i) review of the salary increment for the Directors and staff in Hong Kong, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

(i)  recommendation to the Board on the payment of discretionary bonuses to the Executive Directors
and the senior management in respect of the interim results of the Company for the six months

ended 30 September 2016; and

(i) review of the service agreements of a newly appointed Executive Director and an INED, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

2. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

a.

Remuneration Committee (continued)
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual remuneration of the members of
the senior management (excluding directors) by band for the year ended 31 March 2017 is as follows:

Number of

Emolument band employees
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 0
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1
5

Details of the remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all three INEDs. The Board considers that each member of the Audit
Committee has broad commercial experience and together form a suitable mix of expertise in the legal
and accounting fields and that the composition and members of the Audit Committee comply with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in its terms of reference. To
maintain its independence, the Audit Committee is required to have at least one meeting with the
external auditor without the presence of Executive Directors within a financial year. The function of the
committee is to provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities to shareholders,
potential shareholders, the investment community and other stakeholders relating to:

i) the integrity of accounts and financial reporting process of the Company;

i) the assessment of the external auditor’s qualifications and independence;

i) the performance of the Company’s internal audit function and the external auditor; and

iv)  the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

2. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

b. Audit Committee (continued)
During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings including two meetings with the external
auditor without the presence of the Executive Directors and the management. The attendance of the
individual member of the Audit Committee at the meetings is set out below:

Number of

meetings

Committee Members attended/held
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Lu Chi Chant 4/4
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony (resigned on 1 September 2016) 2/2
Ms. Tham Kit Wan (appointed on 1 September 2016) 2/2

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during the year:

(i) review of the annual report and results announcement of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2016, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

(i)  review of the external auditor's independence and their report, with a recommendation to the
Board for the re-appointment of the external auditor by the shareholders of the Company at its

2016 annual general meeting;

(iii)  review of the interim report and results announcement of the Company for the six months ended
30 September 2016, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

(iv)  consideration of audit and non-audit services provided by the external auditor;

(v) review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
through an independent internal audit service provider who was engaged to perform the aforesaid
work on a half-yearly basis and no material findings had been identified,

(vi) review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and

budget; and

(vii) review of the audit fees payable to the external auditor for the year ended 31 March 2017, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval.

Regarding the Group’s corporate governance, the Board has delegated the responsibilities to the Audit
Committee to perform the following corporate governance duties including:

(i)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

2. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

b.

Audit Committee (continued)
(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors and
management;

(iv) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance report; and

(v)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors.

During the vyear, for the corporate governance functions, an external independent consultant with
professional staff in possession of relevant expertise (the “Independent Professional Firm”) was engaged
to perform the aforesaid work and no material findings had been identified.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, namely, Mr. Chung Yuk Sing and two
INEDs, namely, Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho and Mr. Lu Chi Chant. Mr. Chung Yuk Sing is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The main functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board, to identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become the Directors, and to assess the
independence of the INEDs. After considering the independence and qualifications of nominees, the
Nomination Committee makes recommendations to the Board so as to ensure that all nominations are
fair and transparent. The Nomination Committee is also making recommendations on the appointment
or reappointment of the Directors and succession planning of the Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer.

The committee meets at least once every year and additional meetings may be convened by the
chairman of the committee as and when necessary. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Nomination Committee met twice to recommend suitable candidates to be Board members, review the
existing structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board, and to assess the independence of the
INEDs. The attendance of individual member of the Nomination Committee at the meetings is set out
below:

Number of

meetings

Committee Members attended/held
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho 2/2
Mr. Lu Chi Chant 2/2
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

a. Financial Reporting
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that the Board has prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 34 to 37 of the annual report.

b. Corporate Governance, Internal Control, Group Risk Management

The Board has the overall responsibilities for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the
risks (including environmental, social and governance-related risks (“ESG-Related Risks”)). It is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems (including those for ESG-Related Risks) and reviewing their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. Management is responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
systems, while the Board oversees management in performing its duties. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against
material misstatements or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk associated with its businesses and
operations. The system comprises the following phases:

i) Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives.

ii) Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

iii) Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective communication to the Board and on-
going monitor the residual risks.

A disclosure of inside information policy is in place to ensure potential inside information being captured
and confidentiality of such information being maintained until consistent and timely disclosure are made
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information, which includes:

i) Designated reporting channels from different departments/operation units informing any potential
inside information to the Company Secretary;

i)  The access of information is restricted to a limited number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information are fully conversant with their obligations

to preserve confidentiality;

iii)  Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters into significant negotiations;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continved)

b.

Corporate Governance, Internal Control, Group Risk Management (continued)
iv)  The Senior Management to evaluate the potential inside information and to determine further
escalation, and the executive Directors to determine disclosure as required; and

V) Investor Relations Director is the designated person who speaks on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties, such as media, analysts or investors.

During the year, the Company engaged the Independent Professional Firm to perform internal audit
function for the year, which comprised, inter alia, enterprise risk assessment and reviews on the internal
control system of the Group, including financial, operational and compliance controls. The review plan
was approved by the Audit Committee and the Board. Based on the risk assessments and the reviews of
the internal control systems of the Group conducted by the Independent Professional Firm for the year,
no significant risk and control deficiency was identified. The relevant assessment and review reports
have been considered by the Audit Committee and the Board for assessing the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions performed by the Independent Professional
Firm. The Board, through the reviews made by the Independent Professional Firm and the Audit
Committee, concluded that the risk management and internal control systems are effective and adequate
for the Group as a whole.

Auditor’s Remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2017, the fee payable to the Group’s auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out as
follows:

Amount of

Services rendered fee payable
HK$'000

Audit services 2,640
Non-audit services 62
2,702
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

4. SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

a. Procedures for Shareholders to convene Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM")
Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company can make a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to convene an EGM pursuant to article 58
of the Company’s articles of association. The written requisition must state the objects of the meeting,
and must be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

b. Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the Investor
Relations Director and deposit at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail
to ir@eaglenice.com.hk.

¢.  Putting forward proposal at general meeting
There are no provisions under the Company's articles of association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands regarding procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings
other than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders may follow the procedures set
out above to convene an EGM for any business specified in such written requisition or the procedures
for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director which is available on the website of the
Company.

5. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy since March 2012. The primary
communication channel between the Company and its shareholders is through the publication of
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports, which are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Company’s annual general meeting acts as a useful platform for direct communication between the
shareholders and the Board. Separate resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the

general meetings.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules and the memorandum and articles of
association in respect of voting by poll and other related matters.

On behalf of the Board

Chung Yuk Sing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 June 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

EY::

To the shareholders of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 76 to 156, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed
the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill was HK$26,112,000 as  Our audit procedures included, among others, involving
at 31 March 2017. The Group performs an impairment  our valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the
test for goodwill on an annual basis. The impairment  assumptions and methodologies used by the Group, in
test is based on the recoverable amount of the cash-  particular, the discount rate and terminal growth rate.
generating unit to which the goodwill is associated. = We compared the forecasts prepared by management
Management’'s assessment process involves significant  with the historic performance of the cash-generating
judgements and assumptions, including those related  unit and the business development plan. We also
to the expected future cash flow forecasts, associated  focused on the Group's disclosures of goodwill in the
growth rates and the discount rate applied, which are  consolidated financial statements.

sensitive to expected future market conditions and the

cash-generating unit’s actual performance.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures of goodwill are included in notes 3 and 16
to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Kwong Ka Yan.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

20 June 2017
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Consolidated Income Statement
Gelig R

Year ended 31 March 2017
BE—F—+F=A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
REVENUE BEWA 5 1,757,316 1,534,592
Cost of sales & R (1,436,456) (1,227,650)
Gross profit E A 320,860 306,942
Other income and gains H b e A Ry 2= 5 17,636 11,052
Selling and distribution expenses HENRDHEMAX (22,518) (18,651)
Administrative expenses TR X (127,947) (129,129)
Fair value changes on derivative FESBITARNTEE
financial instruments, net HE) FE — (9,980)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary 7 5 — & Fff & 2 &l
Z B8 — (5,169)
Finance costs B & B AN 6 (2,876) (2,879)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B Bt ai & F 7 185,155 152,186
Income tax expense 5B X 10 (30,036) (27,057)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FAEIBEAANEMS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF EERA
THE COMPANY 155,119 125,129
HK cents HK cents
Al B
EARNINGS PER SHARE EATIHAANEL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF SBREH
THE COMPANY 12
Basic - iN 31.0 25.0
Diluted s 31.0 25.0
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
SEXEWERR

Year ended 31 March 2017
BE—_FE—+tF=HA=1—HIFE

2017 2016
—T—-t%F —E-REF
HK$"000 HK$'000
FEX T T

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EE i T 155,119 125,129

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) Efh2 @l (ZH)

Other comprehensive income/(expense) not to REBEBRAIEH D

be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent EERMEMEEKE
periods: (X H) :
Actuarial gain/(loss) on a defined benefit plan FEEME 2 BE R
/(EB#R) (765) 666

Other comprehensive income/(expense) may be REZBEBEAIEFHESR

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BEmHEME2EmKE
periods: (i) :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign WEEINEE ZIEHEZT
operations (43,419) (28,490)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve 5 88 — M Y B A A B BE =X
upon deregistration of a subsidiary BENEE 2 AR — 6,955
(43,419) (21,535)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR THE FEHbZEIH
YEAR, NET OF TAX (EHMRBIE) (44,184) (20,869)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE ARXASHEBEAEEFESR
YEAR AND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF  TH i 2% 48 38
THE COMPANY 110,935 104,260
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RERBEMRRR

31 March 2017
—F—+F=HA=+—H

2017 2016
—ZET—tF —E—RHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M = F#ET FE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BREKRREE 13 648,645 663,613
Prepaid land lease payments TES 4 A0 & 5K 18 14 57,579 65,587
Goodwill EES 16 26,112 26,112
Deposits & 15 22,112 23,367
Deferred tax asset RERIEE E 25 9,096 —
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 763,544 778,679
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 7E 17 296,652 359,952
Accounts and bills receivables FE U BR R R E 18 125,451 111,523
Prepayments, deposits and other ENRE Zek
receivables H b 8 WK 15 49,929 52,952
Tax recoverable A] Uk [B] F 5k 2,204 —
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEMEER 19 290,934 255,413
Total current assets mEEELE 765,170 779,840
CURRENT LIABILITIES mE & A
Accounts payable JE 15T BR 5K 20 135,284 133,423
Accrued liabilities and other payables [E&&t & & K& H b fE 1+ 2 1B 22 84,840 84,304
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SFEERITE R 23 143,050 197,900
Tax payable JE % 18 32,173 23,525
Total current liabilities nEBEBIE 395,347 439,152
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 369,823 340,688
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEHENKRAEHER
LIABILITIES 1,133,367 1,119,367
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

REMBRRK(E)
31 March 2017
—F—+tF=FA=+—H

2017 2016
SEBEd -
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 T# T FB T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBER
Pension scheme obligation RIREET B AR IE 24 10,033 6,239
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 25 12,985 13,778
Total non-current liabilities nEBAaBEEE 23,018 20,017
Net assets BEFE 1,110,349 1,099,350
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners EATHBAELER
of the Company
Issued capital BEITRA 26 4,997 4,997
Reserves i 1 27 1,105,352 1,094,353
Total equity BREE 1,110,349 1,099,350

CHUNG YUK SING
EEH
Director

EF

CHEN HSIAO YING
PR/ 22
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2017
BE—F—+F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
FATHEAANES
Share Statutory  Exchange
Issued premium Capital surplus fluctuation Retained
capital  account reserve reserve reserve profits Total

E#1T I X EERS Ex

B& it {8 AR fit e RBEE BERA @t
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Mt = THERT FERT FERT FERT FTHET FET FET
(Note 27) (Note 27)
(Max27) (BisEa7)

At 1 April 2015 RZE—AFWA—H 4,997 472,586 (229) 45,886 112,085 452,206 1,087,531
Profit for the year F & = = = = — 125,129 125,129
Other comprehensive income/(expense) 4F & £ it 2 F Ux 25/
for the year: (i) :
Actuarial gain on a defined benefit  E B EH B BE Y E
plan = — = = = 666 666
Exchange differences on translation T E BN ER 2 [E 3 =
of foreign operations B = = = = (28,490) = (28,490)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation HHE—EHBLAREER
reserve upon deregistration REBEEE s AB
of a subsidiary = = = = 6,955 = 6,955
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 4 & 2 Wz /(i)
for the year oE - - - — (1,535 125795 104,260
Transfer to reserve EREGEE = = — 13,571 —  (13,571) —
Transfer of statutory reserve upon HHNBARKEE AT
deregistration of a subsidiary & = = = (809) = 809 —
Final 2015 dividend “T-REREKE n — — — — — (32,479) (32,479)
Interim 2016 dividend “E-RERHRA i = = — — —  (59,962)  (59,962)
At 31 March 2016 N-_ZE—-R"E=A=+—H 4,997 472,586 (229)*  58,648* 90,550*  472,798* 1,099,350
At 1 April 2016 RZE—R"EmA—H 4,997 472,586 (229) 58,648 90,550 472,798 1,099,350
Profit for the year FEa A - - - - — 155,119 155,119
Other comprehensive expense FEEMZESN:
for the year:
Actuarial loss on a defined benefit — EHEBHFHEIFEEEHE
plan - - - - — (765) (765)
Exchange differences on translation ~ WEENEKZE K
of foreign operations bt} - - - - (43,419) — (43,419
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FE 2 EK /(i)
for the year ek - - - - (43,419) 154,354 110,935
Transfer to reserve BREEE — - - 3,463 — (3,463) —
Final 2016 dividend “E-RERARE i — - - - —  (24,984)  (24,984)
Interim 2017 dividend —E-rERHRE 1 — — — — —  (74,952)  (74,952)
At 31 March 2017 R=E—+F=A=+—8 4,997 472,586* (229)*  62,111* 47131* 523,753* 1,110,349
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of e ZEREBERELEIRNCZEVBRARANESE
HK$1,105,352,000 (31 March 2016: HK$1,094,353,000) in the f#% #81,105,352,0008 (=T —A~"F=A=+—
consolidated statement of financial position. A :1,094,353,000/% 7T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

Year ended 31 March 2017
BE—_FE—+tF=HA=1—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt THT FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING @EZXBELEZER%
ACTIVITIES mE
Profit before tax B 35 B A 185,155 152,186
Adjustments for: BATIEE A :
Finance costs = YD iN 6 2,876 2,879
Bank interest income SRITH B U A 5 (2,123) (2,497)
Fair value losses on derivative MESBMTANFEE
financial instruments, net BB FE 7 — 9,980
Depreciation e 7 46,225 52,454
Amortisation of prepaid land lease T8 & #0 70 & 5K I8 5
payments 7 2,072 2,285
Gain on disposal of items of HEME  BEK
property, plant and equipment HEIEA K= 5 (2,815) (773)
Gain on disposal of prepaid land HEFEN L A E K E
lease payments g 5 (3,115) (1,159)
Loss on deregistration of a 5 8H — M Y B A A
subsidiary & 18 7 — 5,169
228,275 220,524
Decrease/(increase) in inventories F& R (1) 63,300 (94,053)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and JEWBREREZEERD,
bills receivables (38 hn) (13,928) 12,669
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEREIE - Ze kEAM
deposits and other receivables & W FKORL (35 hn) 2,777 (5,894)
Increase in accounts payable J& 151 BR K38 0 1,861 28,333
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities F&E =t & & & E fib fE ~ 2k 1B
and other payables o, O 4) 536 (1,499)
Increase in pension scheme liabilities & k4 5+ 2 & &4 in 3,129 2,502
Settlement of pension scheme HERARRIE ARG
liabilities (72) (32)
Cash generated from operations EEELECES 285,878 162,550
Interest paid AT F & (2,876) (2,879)
Dividends paid BT E (99,936) (92,441)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBAEH (10,757) (14,487)
Overseas tax paid EAg N IR (22,364) (12,250)
Net cash flows from operating REREEBZHORE
activities FE 149,945 40,493
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

=T 5)|b§$(2‘§)
GERER

Year ended 31 March 2017
BE-F—tF=A=+—ALTE

2017 2016

=t S —ERE

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3 F#R Tt

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREETHZHE

ACTIVITIES =
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  BERZH

property, plant and equipment, net B E T8 RN IEFE 5,185 1,829
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid & 8 A £ i B IR

land lease payments, net Fris RIE)FE 5,333 2,861
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWY%  BMERRKRE

and equipment HH (64,944) (24,758)
Movements in derivative financial EEM T AEE FE

instruments, net — (19,090)
Movements in available-for-sale AL EREEE

investments — 63,750
Interest received 2 F & 2,123 2,497
Decrease/(increase) in non-current EMEB BN IE S

portion of deposits e A (3 0) 1,255 (23,367)
Net cash flows from/(used in) KB/ (AR REEEZ

investing activities RenREFE (51,048) 3,722

CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING RERMEFTHZHE
ACTIVITY nE
Repayment of bank loans, net and ERBRTEXRFERA
net cash flows used in a financing REEEH 2 RERE
activity F 1A (54,850) (39,721)

.

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH IR& RIRSZ(HIFE

EQUIVALENTS niE{E 44,047 4,494
Cash and cash equivalents at FzHEekREE

beginning of year HH 255,413 255,399
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEH s EFE

changes, net (8,526) (4,480)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ER 2 RIS ZH
END OF YEAR EHE 290,934 255,413

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH & RIS ZHIEHZ

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B am
Cash and bank balances BeMBTERF 19 290,934 240,589
Non-pledged time deposits with BARTEHHB LR

original maturity of less than three =B AZIEEHR

months when acquired F B 1FE =K 19 — 14,824
Cash and cash equivalents BHehBeEMEIHEER 290,934 255,413
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Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M

31 March 2017
—F—+F=HA=+—H

— =5 I 3o
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ATIRKEEEH

INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in KRR AERHENSTIMALZER

the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the N A o AR A #% S R 4k & Cricket

Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,

Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The principal Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman

place of business of the Company is located at Units Islands e KRGl EELFEMWEH LR E

0902-0903 and 0905-0906, 9/F, Tower B, Regent Centre, BT BT BT 709 B & P LB EE

70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories, J1#0902-0903 % & 0905-0906F °

Hong Kong.

The Group's principal activities are the manufacture and AEBECZFEEXEBREEREEEDR

trading of sportswear and garments. NI o

Information about subsidiaries MEBASIZ&EH#

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARAREEMBARFRBUOT:

follows:

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Place of Company
incorporation/ -
registration and Issued share/ FATEIEREE ST
business paid-up registered capital

Name BRI SRTRE 2017 2016 Principal activities

ATER BREREXDE HEEMEE LR TN EEER

Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2; Non-voting deferred 100 100 Investment holding

EBxX(BX&E)ARQA & HK$10,000 (Note (a)) (2016: REER

Ordinary HK$2; Non-voting
deferred HK$10,000)
T@aR2BTL BRERBETER
10,0007 7T (Kt 5% (a))
(ZE—RF - LTBR2ET:
4% 32 1 3R JE R 10,0007 7T)

WECLSE)BKXERRAR The People’s Republic ~ US$23,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“YM (Shantou)”) (Notes (b) and (c)) of China (“PRC")/ (2016: US$23,500,000) sportswear and garments
(M43 Cilisa) 1) (B 3% (b) K2 () Mainland China 23,500,000 7T AERBEEHRKRAK

FEARKLMEA (== — 7% :23,500,0003% 7T)
(TP E ),/ B KR

WECLE)ZEXERAR PRC/Mainland China HK$15,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“YY (Shantou)”) (Notes (b) and (c)) B/ Bl A F& (2016: HK$15,000,000) sportswear and garments
(M#8 #& Cilis8) 1) (B 3% (b) K (c)) 15,000,000/ 7T (=& — /X 4 - AERBEEHRKRAK

15,000,000 7T)
Eagle Nice Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
BEXZERBERAA BH (2016: HK$1) sportswear and garments
14T SERBEEBHREKK
(ZZ—RF 181
Yue Mei (HK) Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
WE(BB)BRKRARDA A (2016: HK$1) sportswear and garments

18
SE-AE BT

SERBEBEEHREAK
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ASIREBEHER =
|NFORMAT|ON (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEBATSIZER &)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

ARRETEMBRARFBENT

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Place of p
incorporation/ ompany
registration and Issued share/ AATEEEBZENL

=g

mE

business paid-up registered capital

Name M BBTR® 2017 2016 Principal activities

AT EE B REEME HREMER = LR N —T—NF FEEH

Maitex (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of

B (EXEE)ERAA A (2016: HK$1,000) sportswear and garments

1,000 7T EEREEEPHRRRK
(ZZ— 754 :1,000% 7T)

BRERBHKXERRA PRC/Mainland China ~ HK$40,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“Maitex PRC") (Notes (b) and (c)) R E /B K B (2016: HK$40,000,000) sportswear and garments
(MR R 1) (5 (b) B (c)) 40,000,000 7T EERBEEEHRKRKKX

(=2 —73% : 40,000,000/ 7T)
King Eagle (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
tE(EBEXEMARRAA B (2016: HK$1) sportswear and garments
178 7T SERBEEEHRERK
(ZTE—RE: 18T

BREEZEBHRBERRAF PRC/Mainland China  US$4,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("Hung Eagle Garment”) RE S E A RE (2016: US$4,000,000) sportswear and garments
(Notes (b) and (c)) 4,000,000 7T EERBEEHRERK
(MR R & ) (5 (b) B2 (c) (=ZZ—75% : 4,000,000% 7T)

Eagle Nice (Indonesia) Holdings Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited b5 (2016: HK$1) & EZE K
&= (ENfE) ERAR AR 17 7T

(ZZ—RF: 1%

P.T. Eagle Nice Indonesia Indonesia US$32,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“EN Indonesia”) Z10i= (2016: US$30,000,000) sportswear and garments
(TExEE) 32,000,000 7T SERBEEEHRERK

(=% —734 : 30,000,000 7T)
Eagle Nice (Jiangxi) Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
BERCIA)RKERAA e (2016: HK$10,000) ®EER
10,0007 7T
—Z — X% 10,0007 7T)
EX(EE)RKXAERAA PRC/Mainland China  US$25,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of

(“EN (Yifeng)”) (Notes (b) and (c)) AR EI /R B K BE (2016: US$25,000,000) sportswear and garments
(T2 (B 9) 1) (B & (b) K () 25,000,0003 7T FEREEEBREKK
(=% — /X4 : 25,000,000 7T)
Notes: P 5 -
(@)  The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no (a) BREERECERTEZINERRE  H

FRREAREXESLERE URERFSE
REEARESTRNINBKEE(ERRSE
% & 3@ A% 42 £100,000,000,000,0007% JT
AERTABIEBERFAEAE  BEARMDZ
HRIARINEHZHEERRIN o

rights to attend or vote at general meetings and no rights to
receive any surplus assets in a return of capital in a winding-up
(other than the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid-
up on such shares, after the sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000
per ordinary share has been distributed to the holders of the
ordinary shares of the company in such winding-up).
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP
|NFORMAT|ON (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b) YM (Shantou), YY (Shantou), Maitex PRC, Hung Eagle Garment
and EN (Yifeng) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under PRC law.

(o) The statutory financial statements of these entities are not
audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

8b

2.1

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BEERME(E)
31 March 2017
—F—+F=HA=+—H

ATIREEEH »
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continved)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continved)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary; (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest; and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received; (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained; and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the
income statement. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to the income statement or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BEERME(E)
31 March 2017
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised
standards for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

As explained below, the adoption of the above new and
revised standards has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements.
Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify:

(a

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the income statement
and the statement of financial position may be

disaggregated;
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DlSCLOSURES (continued)

(@)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify: (continued)

(iii)  that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not
be subsequently reclassified to the income
statement.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the
requirements that apply when additional subtotals
are presented in the statement of financial position
and the income statement. The amendments have
had no significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset.
As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be
used to depreciate property, plant and equipment
and may only be used in very limited circumstances
to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are
applied prospectively. The amendments have had no
impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group as the Group has not used a revenue-
based method for the calculation of depreciation of
its non-current assets.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DlSCLOSURES (continued)

(o)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
as included in Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle issued in October 2014 clarifies
that market depth of high quality corporate bonds
used for discounting the post-employment benefit
obligation for defined benefit plans is assessed
based on the currency in which the obligation
is denominated, rather than the country where
the obligation is located. When there is no deep
market for high quality corporate bonds in that
currency, government bond rates must be used. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group as
the Group’s post-employment benefit obligation for
its defined benefit plan was assessed based on the
currency in which the obligation is denominated and
government bond rates were used.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 4  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40

K (IFRIC)
Interpretation 22

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases’

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses’

Transters of Investment
Property?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration?

Amendments to HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities’

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs?
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STAN DARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of
applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
15 on 1 April 2018. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial performance and financial
position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in the income statement as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or

disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

96

24 FESHBEREBE 0

2 {ET R ()

FERMERENEARBATEOE
ERABEDERYATES BRRMAE
BEAORERINGABBEATAT

BERDE:

F—K — REBRMEPHEREEX
BERBZRECREH
)

E-H — NHERAFEFEBERDH
RERNBGABEAER
KAEEBREONBET X

F=F — NHATEFEBEADH
RERNBABETAER
R EE DA

RREFEEERNY B RRERBNEE
RBEME ASEBEBREHREHK
EFFAEIRERYRFEFEER
MEBEANKRERINEBABE EE
ERBLETRAFRES -

keREERE

WERRETRKBEFTERNEELETHE
EREAAGFE eREELBEK
SN Mgt ZEENAKRESHE - &
ENAREeENEEXNREELEN
MERBBEREAFERHBHER AN ZER
BE UYEERMEMNEE KRIFZEE
EMEERERATERNBBLNEM
BEXREEMANNRESRA > RULBER
T AKROeRAUREEFRBRSEL

B B E -



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —F—tHF 4%,

EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED 35 (B i) &= i B IR A Al r’

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the period in
which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:
Leasehold land under finance Over the lease terms
leases
Buildings Over the lease terms
Over the shorter of the
lease terms or 20%
10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures, equipment 20%
and motor vehicles

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2AFTEEHBEERE

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the income statement so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease
terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under
the operating leases are credited to the income statement
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the income statement in finance costs for loans.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified as
held for trading nor designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
income statement in other income, or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain
or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the income statement in other gains
or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively and
are recognised in the income statement as other income
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to the income statement
over the remaining life of the investment using the
effective interest rate. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised
over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the income statement. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
income statement, is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost
of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the income
statement — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the income statement. Increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable,
financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and other
payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the income statement.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income
statement does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39
are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
foreign currency forward contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to the income statement when the
hedged item affects the income statement.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-
current or separated into current and non-current portions
based on an assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e.,
the underlying contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as
an economic hedge (and does not apply hedge
accounting) for a period beyond 12 months after
the end of the reporting period, the derivative is
classified as non-current (or separated into current
and non-current portions) consistently with the
classification of the underlying item.

o Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to
the host contract are classified consistently with the
cash flows of the host contract.

o Derivative instruments that are designated as, and
are effective hedging instruments, are classified
consistently with the classification of the underlying
hedged item. The derivative instruments are
separated into current portions and non-current
portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside the income statement
is recognised outside the income statement, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in the construction cost of an infrastructure
project, are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the income statement by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) from the sale of goods and samples, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold; and

(i) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

In addition, the Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”)
for those employees who are eligible to participate in
the Retirement Scheme. Contributions to the Retirement
Scheme are charged to the income statement as incurred.
The Retirement Scheme operates in a similar way to
the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves
the Retirement Scheme before his/her interest in the
Group's employer contributions vests fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
relevant amount of the forfeited employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme for their employees who are registered as
permanent residents in Mainland China. The contributions
are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESHBEEME 2

ACCOU NTI NG PO L|C| ES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial
valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from a defined benefit pension
plan, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the asset ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return
on plan assets (excluding net interest), are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial
position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to the income statement in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in the income statement
at the earlier of:

o the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and “administrative
expenses” in the income statement by function:

o service costs comprising current service costs, past
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and

non-routine settlements; and

° net interest expense or income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT' NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’'s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or the income
statement is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or the income statement, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their income statements are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, their accompanying
disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount
of goodwill at 31 March 2017 was HK$26,112,000 (2016:
HK$26,112,000). Further details are given in note 16.

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment allowance for doubtful
debts based on an assessment of the recoverability of
accounts and bills receivables. Allowances are applied to
accounts and bills receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgements and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have an impact on
the carrying value of the receivables and impairment/write-
back of impairment in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.
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MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group determines that
there are five reportable operating segments, based on the
location of customers (the destination of sales), including
the United States of America (the “USA”), Mainland China,
Europe, Japan and others. These segments are managed
separately as each segment is subject to risks and returns
that are different from one another.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit
before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
interest income and other unallocated income and gains,
fair value changes on derivative financial instruments, loss
on deregistration of a subsidiary and unallocated expenses
are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these assets
are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

120

4.

HESEREH
BREEME - A E AR P HE (3
B A0 t) A2 e - BT T A R A
HH- BEXE - FEAE - BM - A
AREMIE - ZEH BEDBER
BRIRR D BHBILSAER -

EEEBYERELEDHES  UE
EHERERSERKRIRFENRE -
7 &b 3R IR TH R AR AT ¥R & 0 2R A AF A
i A] & > B A B IA 48 58 B Bk B A
MEtE - RABBHAENOFESR
EAEEKRHAEMNAED -2 I
BB EXTFAFBEA - Etb KK
RBARKSE TEEMIARFEE
B EHEMBARZEERARRESH -

PRAETOREASREAR  RERK
SEERERERE -
HEEETEEAARAMN  REEX
SEERERER -



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —F—HFF3R EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 (B B%) = R B IR A Al "’

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BERERNE(R)

31 March 2017
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. £Z498E&EE o

(continued)
2017 —T—-tF
Mainland
USA China Europe Japan Others Consolidated
XE ©EXE B BFX HtpE RE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Segment revenue: DEEEWA:

Sales to external customers & FINAREF 688,450 506,047 251,454 54,814 256,551 1,757,316
Segment results DEEE 104,943 77,295 39,527 8,159 37,446 267,370
Interest income and other FE WA R EH A

unallocated income and RGFERWA K

gains Y 17,636
Unallocated expenses AR (99,851)
Profit before tax B B A i A 185,155
Income tax expense FT3 8 MAx (30,036)
Profit for the year attributable A&7 B # & A B

to owners of the Company & ¥ Al 155119
Segment assets DEEE 465,880 335,071 169,327 33,535 160,245 1,164,058
Unallocated assets AREEE 364,656

1,528,714
Segment liabilities DEEE 105,412 76,048 38,032 8,035 39,494 267,021
Unallocated liabilities KR ARE 151,344
418,365
Other segment information: ~ E DB E K
Depreciation and TEREE

amortisation 15,807 8,090 4,749 1,103 5,267 35,016
Unallocated amounts ARESE 13,281
48,297
Capital expenditure* EARF 35,655 6,327 8,129 1,403 10,534 62,048
Unallocated amounts KR £ % 2,896
64,944

@ Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and * BERRAXRERDE BERIKEBHRE -

equipment.
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31 March 2017
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &Z29E&H »)
(continued)
2016 —T-REF
Mainland
USA China Europe Japan Others  Consolidated
EH RERE G BAR  Hibitm Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FHT FAT FAT FHT
Segment revenue: AEEERA:

Sales to external customers — HEFIRKRF 560,799 442,252 206,106 65,676 259,759 1,534,592
Segment results DEEE 101,490 73,273 35,607 9,241 37,024 256,635
Interest income and other B WA R E AR

unallocated income and LGN &

gains 11,052
Fair value changes on TESMIAATF

derivative financial BEEEFE

instruments, net (9,980)
Loss on deregistration of a  &E 5 — BB DA

subsidiary E#B (5,169)
Unallocated expenses AR (100,352)
Profit before tax B %5 A s Al 152,186
Income tax expense FTigfi A (27,057)
Profit for the year attributable 72 E % & A E1h

to owners of the Company & & i 7l i)
Segment assets DEEEE 457,505 316,012 152,069 54,567 244,491 1,224,644
Unallocated assets RREEE 333,875

1,558,519
Segment liabilities HEEE 80,905 73,001 32,174 9,722 40,008 235,810
Unallocated liabilities KRB E 223,359
459,169
Other segment information: ~ E 5 BEE R :
Depreciation and mEREE
amortisation 16,119 8,906 5,105 1,798 6,540 38,468
Unallocated amounts ARESE 16,271
54,739
Capital expenditure* NG 9,920 4,286 3,040 1,079 3,797 22,122
Unallocated amounts KR &E 2,781
24,903
@ Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and * BERAAXRERYE BERZXEBEHARE -

equipment.
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BHBRNE(E)
31 March 2017
—F—+tF=FA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BESEER @

(continued)
Geographical information — non-current assets WEEE — kRBHEE
2017 2016
—F—t%5 AN S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT BT
Hong Kong BB 15,902 16,962
Mainland China A K B 570,187 600,120
Indonesia == 177,455 161,597
763,544 778,679
The non-current assets information above is based on the FAERBEEERRIZEEMEHE
locations of the assets. EHET -
Information about major customers FREXEEFRFMEH
Revenue of HK$987,896,000 (2016: HK$853,077,000) and REBEREE—RE_ABEFPHEERN
HK$677,716,000 (2016: HK$594,865,000) were derived FEFEWA DRI A987,896,0008 L (==
from sales to the largest customer and the second largest — 7~ 4F : 853,077,000 JT) 677,716,000
customer of the Group, respectively. The above amounts BT (ZF — 7N F 1 594,865,000 TT) °
include sales to groups of entities which are known to be L eERER—HENX LR F K
under common control with these customers. REHNEEAOES -
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MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5. %%l&)\&ﬁﬂﬂl&)\&l&

GAINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, EEWATDENREERBESITMEE
after allowances for returns and trade discounts. BREEEMIBREEME-

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains is as EERAREAMPA RS2 AT
follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Revenue EEIA
Sale of goods BEmiHE 1,757,316 1,534,592
Other income and gains Hfth e A\ B Ui 25
Bank interest income ;AT H B WA 2,123 2,497
Income derived from available-for-sale AHEEHRENKRA
investments 646 1,442
Government grants* KT 4 B & * 8,312 4,725
Gain on disposal of items of property, LEME BEKKEHEER
plant and equipment el &= 2,815 773
Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease HEEMN L ERIE
payments & 3,115 1,159
Others ) 625 456
17,636 11,052
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to * % % 16 BY) I f 14 R S AXAY R £ K AR B oK
these grants. REIE o
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. MBERE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Interest on bank loans RITERF B 2,876 2,879
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BHBRNE(E)
31 March 2017
—F—+tF=FA=+—H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. Be¥Bimiad
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AN E BB AT S M B GEA) T 5 &
(crediting): 5
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&ET FAT
Cost of inventories sold EEFENKN 1,436,456 1,227,650
Auditor’s remuneration % EXRD BN & 2,640 2,492
Depreciation (note 13)* & (FE13) 46,225 52,454
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE A 4t 70 & Sk 55
payments (note 14)* (B 5E14) * 2,072 2,285
Employee benefit expenses (excluding BERMZEH(TEEES
directors’ and chief executive’s RITHEHMNE —
remuneration — note 8); M 7ES)
Wages and salaries IERHF® 376,598 344,030
Pension contributions, including a RARSFEHR  BER
pension cost for a defined benefit EREBEAFENERRE
plan of HK$3,129,000 (2016: X 753,129,000 T (=
HK$2,502,000) (note 24) T — N 12,502,000
7o) (Fff 5% 24) 59,889 57,242
Less: Forfeited contributions B M R — (439)
Net pension contributions BREET B HFOFE 59,889 56,803
Total employee benefit expenses* BiE 818 F 436,487 400,833
Foreign exchange differences, net E 5 =R F R 1,143 2,615
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BEKKZEEE
plant and equipment W 2= (2,815) (773)
Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease  H&IE L ith 7 &S F A
payments W %5 (3,115) (1,159)
Income derived from available-for-sale AHEERENKA
investments (646) (1,442)
Fair value losses, net, NEEFBAE:
Derivative financial instruments — MESHMTE — &4
transactions not qualified as hedges: HAHIERHENRS
— matured during the year — REREH — 9,980
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary FH—HEMNEAREE — 5,169

* Included in the respective balances are the following amounts

which are also included in the cost of inventories sold

disclosed above:

BREFBKRPBEATHALXAEER

EFERAZ R

2017 2016

—T—t# —E—RF

HK$000 HK$'000

FHERT F# T

Depreciation e 33,336 36,636
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE A 4 3 A & 51 IE # 8

payments 1,679 1,832

Employee benefit expenses EEEA X 380,320 345,818
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MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ESRITHESRMNE

AEEEERTRAAMSEE Fr
B - & & 2 F 6 Bl #383()a) () (©)
B RATHEEEF % ER) B0
F2MBBWT -

2017 2016
—E—tf —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T# T FB T
Fees e 378 360
Other emoluments: H B 2
Salaries, allowances and Fe  ZBREYREAR
benefits in kind 9,115 7,926
Discretionary bonuses )15 12 AT 4,500 4,800
Pension scheme contributions RIREET 5K 1,166 924
14,781 13,650
15,159 14,010
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIAFEWMITES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

FANTBLFNTEEFZE/ESN
T

2017 2016
—ET—t#E —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHE T
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho REREE 126 120
Mr. Lu Chi Chant EMELE 126 120
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony B 58 ¥ 5 A
(resigned on 1 September 2016) (RZZE—RF
NA—BET) 50 120
Ms. Tham Kit Wan mEREL L
(appointed on (RZZE—R%F
1 September 2016) NA—BEZF) 76 —
378 360

FRALEBEMBENBULIERTE
B2 (ZFE—RF E)-

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2016: Nil).
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BHEBRRNE(E)
31 March 2017
—F—+tF=FA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTHAEIME »
REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

(b) Executive directors (b) BITESE
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Discretionary Pension scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e BUR
e BHEd Mg BhRSEIHER &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET F& T FHET FHE T
2017 —T—+tF
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing EEFLEE
(“Mr. Chung”)* (T@EED* — 3,374 2,500 468 6,342
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying RN RE — 3,163 2,000 438 5,601
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu BREEE
(resigned on (R=—ZT— %
15 September 2016) NA+EBET) — 120 - - 120
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina BRI E L+ — 2,320 — 260 2,580
Mr. Lee Cheng Chuan FTHEHEEE
(appointed on (RZT—RF
15 September 2016) NWA+HEBEZME) — 138 — — 138
— 9,115 4,500 1,166 14,781
2016 —T—RF
Executive directors: WITEE:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing* EBEF S AE — 2,816 2,500 384 5,700
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying RN £ — 2,671 2,300 360 5,331
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu BFEMAEE = 160 — — 160
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina fR5ELZL — 2,279 — 180 2,459
- 7,926 4,800 924 13,650
o Mr. Chung is also the Chairman and the Chief Executive * BEEMABADANER RITHAE
Officer of the Company. £ oo
There was no arrangement under which a director REFERATBEMEFTREXF
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during EREENMNE 2L -
the year.
The directors’ remuneration shown above does not PR ESEWHEe L RBERE
include the estimated monetary value of the Group’s AR TESELEREL2EN
owned premises provided rent-free to an executive AEBBREYE ZAABE - BE
director, Mr. Chung, during the year. The estimated —E—+tF=RA=+—HLEFE"
rental value of such accommodation was HK$115,000 ZAETE 2B EE A115,0008 7T (=
(2016: HK$124,000) for the year ended 31 March T — N4 124,000 7T) ©
2017.
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MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2016: three) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration
of the remaining two (2016: two) non-director, highest
paid employees for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set
out below:

AEGEEHMES

FR EEABRBSFMERE=A(Z
ToNEZREF BERREFMM
HEREEXHESRE - RRE-T
—tF= A=+ —BIFEN BTH
ACF-AE MR)BREMEHE
FEAHMEHEMT

2017 2016
—FT—t%F AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥% - 2B R E W& 3,753 4,196
Discretionary bonuses 15 12 AL 1,000 1,600
Pension scheme contributions RIREET 83K 274 314

5,027 6,110

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

MeENFUTEENREHMIFEEEE
EMEBEMT:

Number of employees

EE®AE

2017 2016
—F—-t#F ZTRF

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ T & — -
1,500,000 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T &= - —
2,000,000 7T

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T E 1 —
2,500,000 7T

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 L &= — 1
3,000,0007% 7T

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ L & 1 1
3,500,000/ 7T

2 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2016: Nil).
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10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
being effective on 1 January 2008, the corporate income
tax rate for all enterprises in Mainland China is 25%.

Moreover, under the relevant tax laws and regulations in
Mainland China, a company may set off losses incurred
by it in a financial year against profits made by it in the
succeeding financial year or years, subject to a maximum
of five financial years.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBRRMNE(E)

31 March 2017
—E—tFE=Z/F=+—H

10. T & #H

FR BEANESHEETEELENR
B R B & Al LA16.5% (ZF — N F -
16.5%) T R E B - H b3 5 B R B A
MeHE - AIRBEAREXRFAEER
MIRTHEFE -

RER-_ZENF-—A-BERNTE
CEMRSHE TEAEMBELEND
EFERER25% °

REAENTEAERBERRY - —
RARAKER—EARBRFRELEZE
B BEEEARER-—BAXZEMRFE
Zah  BERETFHRBRAEMKREE -

2017 2016
—FT—tF —E—XEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Current tax charge for the year: AEEHEXZ -

Hong Kong ' 20,202 11,057
Elsewhere H At th 5 14,119 14,370

Underprovision of current tax in respect & 7 F [Z 7 T8 B 5 T 2
of prior years 3,305 —
Deferred (note 25) i FE (Bff 5£25) (7,590) 1,630
Total tax charge for the year REEMIAZ LR 30,036 27,057
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10. FRiG % =
AR AR TR A H B A 5 AL
BRI T AR R E B R E Y B B
MwF s A R ER RSy
BEM Y 2 AGMT

10. INCOME TAX (continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rates for the tax jurisdictions
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate

is as follows:

2017 2016

—T—-tF —E-REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TH&ET FHE T

Profit before tax B 7 A4 A 185,155 152,186
Tax at the applicable rates to profit in 12 & B H 75 &) 7% # 1= ¥ 3% 7

the tax jurisdictions concerned BRAZBEFEZHIE 35,699 33,499
Adjustments in respect of current tax of i@ 1 4 & BN # &% 18 1F

previous years o B 3,305 —
Income not subject to tax BARB WA (504) (1,152)
Expenses not deductible for tax AN 2 E R 1,298 4,064
Effect of withholding tax on the MR EE 2 B E A A

distributable profits of the Group’s Al 95 K s A TR 2 &2 &

PRC subsidiaries 1,711 1,630
Tax losses utilised from previous periods ) F3 JA Al #7 fd &9 7 7% /&5 18 (6,240) (10,984)
Tax loss not recognised AN R 1R B 1B 4,068 —
Others EH A (9,301) —
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate R ANEBEEH RAE 2

18 32 i 30,036 27,057

130



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =& —tF &R

EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 (B B%) = R B IR A Al rf

1.

12.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRKE(E)

31 March 2017
—E—tFE=Z/F=+—H

DIVIDENDS 1. K2
2017 2016
—FT—t%F AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Dividends paid during the year: FABARKRE
Final in respect of the financial year HEZZT—R"F=A=+—
ended 31 March 2016 — HK5 cents HIESBFEERARE
(2016: HK6.5 cents) — BRE & RSB
per ordinary share (ZZF—7"F : 6.5%81l) 24,984 32,479
Interim — HK15 cents (2016: HK12 cents) R HEIAR B — TR L@ A%
per ordinary share 15781l
(ZZE—RF 1280) 74,952 59,962
99,936 92,441
Proposed final dividend R R EA AR B
HK6 cents (2016: HK5 cents) per %ﬁt\% %678 11l
ordinary share —E—NF5EAL) 29,981 24,984

The proposed final dividend for the year is based on the
number of shares in issue as at the reporting date, and is
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial
statements do not reflect the final dividend payable.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
for the year of HK$155,119,000 (2016: HK$125,129,000)
and 499,680,000 (2016: 499,680,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March
2017 and 2016 as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during those years.
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MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.9E - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold Plant and and motor
buildings improvements machinery vehicles Total
RE
HELH HER KB RE
kiEF HEYMERKE 5% 1 RRE “ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
31 March 2017 —®¥—tf£=A=+—H
Cost: A
At beginning of year F 4 701,128 118,917 241,376 71,689 1,133,110
Additions NE 37,914 3,372 18,501 5,157 64,944
Disposals H & (2,438) (4,967) (4,607) (5,847) (17,859)
Exchange realignment [EE 5 58 & (32,876) (6,101) (10,209) (2,479) (51,665)
At 31 March 2017 R=ZE—+&F=A=+—H 703,728 111,221 245,061 68,520 1,128,530
Accumulated depreciation: 2REWE:
At beginning of year F 1) 127,846 102,523 175,020 64,108 469,497
Provided during the year (note 7) & R & & (M 3£7) 23,684 4,954 13,138 4,449 46,225
Disposals i (2,030) (4,930) (2,693) (5,836)  (15,489)
Exchange realignment [E 5 3 & (6,166) (5,471) (6,512) (2,199) (20,348)
At 31 March 2017 R=ZZE—+t&F=A=+—H 143,334 97,076 178,953 60,522 479,885
Net book value: BR H F A
At 31 March 2017 W_ZE—+F=A=+—H 560,394 14,145 66,108 7,998 648,645
31 March 2016 —E-A"E=A=+—8
Cost: N
At beginning of year F ) 726,222 120,812 228,568 72,682 1,148,284
Additions nE 193 4,305 17,227 3,178 24,903
Disposals HE (1,825) (1,01) — (1,765) (4,691)
Write-offs i 5 (294) (780) (86) (630) (1,790)
Exchange realignment [ 5 58 & (23,168) (4,319) (4,333) (1,776) (33,596)
At 31 March 2016 R=ZZE—R"F=A=1+—H 701,128 118,917 241,376 71,689 1,133,110
Accumulated depreciation: 2RFE :
At beginning of year F 1) 108,268 99,918 163,358 62,405 433,949
Provided during the year (note 7) 4 R & & (M 3£7) 23,914 8,237 14,899 5,404 52,454
Disposals e (352) (1,089) — (1,536) (2,977)
Write-offs 1 5 (294) (780) (86) (630) (1,790)
Exchange realignment [E 5 38 B (3,690) (3,763) (3,151) (1,535) (12,139)
At 31 March 2016 R=ZZE—R"F=A=1+—H 127,846 102,523 175,020 64,108 469,497
Net book value: BRTEF A
At 31 March 2016 RZZE—R"FE=A=+—8H 573,282 16,394 66,356 7,581 663,613
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14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BHBRNE(E)
31 March 2017
—F—+tF=FA=+—H

14. BT B ERIE

2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Carrying amount at beginning of year FUEMRE 67,795 74,744
Amortisation recognised during the year 7 £ A #E 32 5 4
(note 7) (M 5£7) (2,072) (2,285)
Disposals & (2,218) (1,702)
Exchange realignment (AR (3,964) (2,962)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HBzEHEE 59,541 67,795
Current portion included in prepayments, st ATERI A  H& K Hib
deposits and other receivables FE W SR IE 2 BN ER &F &
(note 15) (B 5£15) (1,962) (2,208)
Non-current portion FE BN ER 2B 57,579 65,587

One of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments with a
net book value of HK$1,361,000 (2016: HK$1,476,000),
together with the leasehold buildings thereon, has been
provided as rent-free accommodation to Mr. Chung, an
executive director of the Company during the year.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

AN & [E H A —I5 R )% 1E1,361,000% 7T
— T — N 1,476,000 ;T) 2 A £
WHERE BEREENEAEEFAE
NIRHIERELEE (KRR —RHITES)
2 RMEERT -

15. %ﬁ'%}’tlﬁ e RHEAME

2017 2016
—E—tHF AN
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M TERT FHETT
Prepaid land lease payments TE A~ £ A & K18 14 1,962 2,208
Prepayments TE N 5 IE 25,334 34,898
Deposits and other receivables e & H b R R 44,745 39,213
72,041 76,319

Less: Non-current portion of B BEME  BER

deposits for purchases of REEAY

items of property, plant and FEENEE DIk
equipment (22,112) (23,367)
49,929 52,952

None of the financial assets included in the above
balances is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.

133

biiEHEEnerREEY &R IR
B BEEALLRBRERBEEHRANS R
BE OHYERRCE -



"f

EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B bR ) ¥ BZ B BR 2 & ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =—F—HLF &R
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MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

16. GOODWILL 16. &

Cost and carrying amount:

At beginning and end of year NS NPNE SRS

PAE K AR EE

2017 2016
—FT—t%F VAN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET
26,112 26,112

The Group’s goodwill was wholly allocated to a cash-
generating unit engaged in the manufacture and trading
of sportswear and garments (the “Unit”). The recoverable
amount of the Unit has been determined from the value
in use, which is calculated with reference to cash flow
projections based on a five-year period financial budget
approved by senior management. The financial budgets
are prepared reflecting actual and prior year performance
and development expectations. The key assumptions for
the cash flow projections are the budgeted gross margin
which is the average gross profit margin achieved in the
year immediately before budgeted years and the discount
rate of 20% (2016: 20%), which is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the Unit. The cash flow
projections are prepared based on the assumption that
the Unit will have revenue based on the actual sales order
amount and revenue forecasted by the head of the sales
department for the first year, and then maintain a 3% (2016:
3%) growth rate thereafter. The directors believe that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the
Unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since
the recoverable amount of the Unit is higher than its
carrying amount, the directors consider there was no
impairment of the goodwill at the end of the reporting
period.
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17.

18.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BHBRNE(E)
31 March 2017
—F—+tF=FA=+—H

INVENTORIES 17. 58

2017 2016
—E—+tf —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE&ET FAET
Raw materials [E 4 = 133,443 168,245
Work in progress &G 104,401 90,662
Finished goods R m 58,808 101,045
296,652 359,952

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18. FEWMBR X R E 18

The Group’s accounts and bills receivables mainly relate
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers. The
credit period is generally for a period of 30 to 45 days
(2016: 30 to 45 days). The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise the
credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
the management of the Group. The accounts and bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing. At the end of the
reporting period, 59% (2016: 67%) and 34% (2016: 25%)
of the total accounts and bills receivables were due from
the Group’s largest customer and the second largest
customer, respectively.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

AEBCZREBERREBEZTZERE T
RAREERTNEFHER - 88—
B AB30KE45K(ZF — /N F 130K 245
K)o ANE BB HAKREEEWERERS
EREFEEREE  #BEERRESHNZER
BAKE - ANz E&BBHASEER
EBErHEN BREXKEEA2EK
Ko RNBMEHAR  AEBHEARPLE
ZAREPOAIEAEEEREREER
4 EE59% (ZF — N F 1 67%) &34% (=
T— N 1 25%) °

BEABREHLEZREERREBRE
HEAHMRESNAOT

2017 2016

—E—t%E AN S

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

Within 30 days 30K A 114,153 89,233
31 to 60 days 31260k 7,168 13,614
61 to 90 days 61Z290K 1,746 6,132
Over 90 days 90K E 2,384 2,544
125,451 111,523
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MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

18. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)
An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables that
are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

18. BEWBR R R EH o

TR M 0 PR AR B R T IR R B
mT

2017 2016

—F—t#F NS

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired BT #2260 HA 7% OB (B 119,264 101,598
Past due: 0 B -

Within 30 days 30K A 3,167 4,881

31 to 60 days 31260X 674 2,825

61 to 90 days 61290K 1,407 1,236

Over 90 days 90K M E 939 983

125,451 111,523

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate
to customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of customers that have a good track records
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

R T OROR (B B R ML BR R BT B
ERALENEPARM -

B 78 1 1B R R B Y 8 U R 3R B R o [
BERUNXBCHENETEFHEMRM - 1R
BAENKR ARREETRR/BEAE
HRERE AREERLEBRTEE

m o

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. IR&RRLEEIEH

2017 2016

—E—tE —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FE T

Cash and bank balances ReRRITET 290,934 240,589
Non-pledged time deposits with original REZISHBELR=EA 2

maturity of less than three months JFEHTEHER — 14,824

Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEMEEE 290,934 255,413
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19.

20.

21.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BHEBRRNE(E)
31 March 2017
—F—+tF=FA=+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ontinvesy 19. IRE R EHEHIEH »
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank R|MEHAR  TXEEUARBE(TARE]D
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") FTEMIR S K IR1T 4 17 48265,377,000%8
amounted to HK$265,377,000 (2016: HK$218,745,000). JTL(ZZF —7NF 1 218,745,000 L) - AR
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. KA GEBRABRAEMER - AMERE
However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange REABERINEERGONREE &
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale ERNEEERTE AEEERLEEBS
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group BEERERBINEXB 2RITBARKR
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through BRREEME -
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on FRIE|ETHRSZREARTERMNEZ
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are FEEERIMAE c AEEIZNKES
made for varying periods of between one day and three FEEH—BE=ZAANRHERFR -
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of I 55 Bl 42 58 HA FE HA 77 SRR R BRER A B o
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term RITEBR DTN EEBBIEZRRK
time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with a0 8k 2 HRAT ©
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 20. FE {4 BR 3K
An aged analysis of the accounts payable as at the end RBEMRZENEFRBEEEZZAHN
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BRI DTN T -
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Within 90 days 90K A 123,921 128,546
91 to 180 days 91E180K 3,419 954
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 3,398 179
Over 365 days 365K A 4,546 3,744
135,284 133,423
The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are EBNERAEEERZ EE5H— K AE45
normally settled on 45-day terms. X e
BANKING FACILITIES 21. SRITHAEE

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's banking facilities were
supported by the corporate guarantees executed by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company to the
extent of HK$647,750,000 (2016: HK$597,375,000), of
which an aggregate amount of HK$143,050,000 (2016:
HK$197,900,000) was utilised.
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MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

22. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER 22. EstE B R EMEMNIRIE

PAYABLES

2017 2016

—ET—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi&ET FAT

Other payables H b & 5 5k IE 31,211 28,566

Accruals et & A 53,629 55,738

84,840 84,304

23.

Other payables of the Group as at 31 March 2017
included a subsidy of HK$2,677,000 (2016: HK$3,280,000)
received from the People’s Government of Yifeng County,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC for the construction cost of basic
infrastructure by the Group for the development of the
investment project in Jiangxi (the “Jiangxi Project”). During
the year, an amount of HK$603,000 (2016: HK$272,000)
was utilised and has been offset against the construction
cost.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK

AEBR-_ZT—+F=ZA=+—HWHH
HEMKESERTFRIAEELHEA
B BT B W BR2,677,0005 T (= & — 7%
F 3,280,000/ L) M B) - EAAREE
MEBETIRKEBEB(IABEDNER
BEREERA - FA - BB H603,000%
TL(=ZF — X4 272,000/ 7T) W A 2 &£
RN 8 o

23. 5T RERITER

BORROWINGS
Effective interest 2017 2016
rate (%) BRI E (%) Maturity FHE —T—tF IS
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT
Current B 3
1.02% to 1.77% 1.02%%E1.77% (=&
(2016: 1.18% to —ANF118%E
Bank loans RITER 1.53%) 1.53%) On demand  EEK 143,050 197,900
As at 31 March 2017, all of the bank borrowings of R — & = =+ — 8-

HK$143,050,000 (2016: HK$197,900,000) were supported
by corporate guarantees executed by the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2017,
HK$105,400,000)
denominated in US$.

HK$38,750,000 (2016:
of the bank borrowings were
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23.

24.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BHBRNE(E)
31 March 2017
—E—tFE=Z/F=+—H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK 23. STRMITER =)
BORROWINGS (continued)
Based on the maturity terms of the bank borrowings, the BERTERZERDR  RIOTEREN
amounts repayable in respect of the bank borrowings are SEOWMET
analysed as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E— R
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&ET FAET
Analysed into: DR -
Within one year and on demand —FRARKEEK 143,050 197,900
PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION 24. Bk &5 S5 7

The Group provides benefits for its employees of its
subsidiary in Indonesia who achieve the requirement age
of 55 years based on the provisions of the Indonesian
Labour Law.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of
changes in life expectancy.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value
of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at
31 March 2017 by Biro Pusat Aktuaria, an independent
actuary with a licence from the Indonesia Ministry of
Finance, using the projected unit credit method. These
obligations are not funded by the Group.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

AEBEERHNES TERTE  BEFSS
BREFHRODEMBARREE  =2H
=R

ZHHEGHEARRAN AL DA

& o
ZN

TRBNECREZRFBEMREHE
[E Bt B &R 58 7] %8 37 ¥5 & A [H] Biro  Pusat
Aktuaria iR BB RI B E E R EEE X
R_TE—tF=ZHA=+—HETE - -%F
BEEYIFRANEE MR -

RBEERRAEBCETZRERRMOT

2016
—E—RF

B3R R (%)

Discount rate (%)
Expected rate of salary increases (%)

B #F 2B R E (%)

7.89 8.3
7.0 7.0

139



A

EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B bR ) ¥ BZ B BR 2 &

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =—F—HLF &R

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

24. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION (continves)  24. 3B K & 5 8l %K & 2)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions
as at the end of the reporting period is shown below:

RBBEMR BARRZIEEHRED
o REAT -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
net defined net defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligation in rate obligation
REEAESE REEAEE
FlEEN FEEM
tb=®E EF (BY) LEETER (B D)
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
FET FET
2017 —B—tf
Discount rate BRI X 1 (1,831) 1 2,322
Future salary increase R R & & 1L 1 2,319 1 (1,860)
2016 —E—RF
Discount rate 8f 35 & 1 (1,139) 1 1,449
Future salary increase & R & 1N 1 1,450 1 (1,158)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based
on a method that extrapolates the impact on net defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in
key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in
a significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions
constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be representative
of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as
it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in
isolation of one another.
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31 March 2017
—E—tFE=Z/F=+—H

24. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION (continued)

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income

24. B &5 EIRIE
REZHER G AR RERRA AL A

statement in respect of the plan are as follows:

m

2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T FAET
Current service cost HAE RS KA 2,813 2,179
Past service cost i@ & RS KA (202) —
Interest cost A B KA 518 323
Net benefit expenses B F R 3,129 2,502
Recognised in cost of sales 88 6 B 2N FE 3R 2,638 2,096
Recognised in administrative expenses 1T S 7 7R 491 406
3,129 2,502

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit THEEMNEEHRECESHUOT

obligation are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FHET
At 1 April R A—H 6,239 4,446
Current service cost I A AR A A 2,813 2,179
Past service cost B A PR B AR (202) —
Interest cost F B KA 518 323
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEE (W) 765 (666)
Benefits paid =R (72) (32)
Exchange differences M X =5 (28) (11
At 31 March R=A=+—H 10,033 6,239
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24. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION (continves)  24. B4k & 5 Sl iR iE )
The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as
follows:

2017 —E—+tF

Pension cost charged to the income

Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other

statement comprehensive income
RS ROBRZBHRERE Hib2EWE 2 ERHGEMWE) B8
Actuarial Actuarial
Sub-total changes changes Sub-total Exchange
included arising from arising from included differences
in the changes in  changes in in other ona
1 April Service Net income Benefits financial experience comprehensive foreign 31 March
2016 cost interest statement paid assumptions adjustments income [JEL 2017
R=Z%®
) et R g% AR
—RE (%51 FE EFAkz: Eft #HELZ ELENHHE HARGE2E ®HNGHD
mA—AH %3 B8 RZt & wHEY b1 WEzhit ERZES
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHER FERT THER FTERT TFTERX FHERT FER FHERT FHET FER
Defined benefit obligation & %8 4& F| & £ 6,239 2,611 518 3,129 (72) 804 (39 765 (28) 10,033
2016 —EAF
Pension cost charged to the income Remeasurement (gains)/losses in other
statement comprehensive income
R s RN ZRIKE KA HEtembha s B2 0ME) HE
Actuarial Actuarial
Sub-total changes changes Sub-total Exchange
included arising from  arising from included  differences
in the changes in changes in in other on a
1 April  Service Net income  Benefits financial experience  comprehensive foreign 31 March
2015 cost interest statement paid assumptions  adjustments income plan 2016
j: -
R=F B R R sHAE —NEF
—aF R % e EAMKE BN Z#HELr ELNOBEE HAHGRE RIS =R
mA—B A FE RzE (gl BEEY HE Kzmzhat EHXEZE®E 2 =+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEL THETL TEZX FEL FTHER FET FEL FET FEL FEL
Defined benefit obligation & 2848 F| & £ 4,446 2,179 323 2,502 (32) (514) (152) (666) (11) 6,239

AEIEEREZAFEZEZERMT

The major categories of the fair value of the total plan
assets are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tHE —F—RK

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHE T

Equity instruments BARTA N/AFEHR N/A 73 A
Debt instruments BEITA N/A 7 &E H N/A 73
Property S N/A 7 i N/A A3
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24. PENSION SCHEME OBLIGATION (ontinues)  24. BR £ 5T SR IE =)

Expected contributions to be made in the future years out RAREFEz2ERBAMNEEBHHRBER
of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: m
2017 2016
—E—-tHE AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE&EX FET
Within the next 12 months RK121E A A - —
Between 2 and 5 years 2E54F 48 108
Between 5 and 10 years 5E104F 1,520 800
Over 10 years 10 A £ 818,675 738,286
Total expected payments SERE DR 820,243 739,194
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation THREMNEENRBRSHRN THFER
at the end of the reporting period is 19.28 years (2016: MR19.28F (ZE—RF 1 19.124) -

19.12 years).

25. DEFERRED TAX 25. IREFH 1A
The movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax AEERFANEERIEEEREER
liabilities of the Group during the year are as follows: BHEEEHOT:
Deferred tax asset EEBIEESE

Losses available
for offsetting
against future

taxable profits

o] A LL i £8
R 7K FE 3R i ifs 7
B &5 18
HK$'000
T#EIT
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZ=-_Z—HAFMA—AH * —
—E-RFE=ZA=1+—H8BK
—E—-R"FHA—H
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated income FRFALGAE W ROIELEF 8 9,301
statement during the year (note 10) (KT 5E10)
Exchange realignment PE i 38 & (205)
At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+tF=HA=+—H 9,096
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25. IBEERHIE )
AEBRENNECHELEERBER

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax

liabilities of the Group during the year are as follows: HaBEEHMT: (&)
(continued)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE
Withholding
taxes on
Accelerated undistributed
tax Asset  profits of PRC
depreciation revaluation subsidiaries Total
B T B 2 A
JIlIEE R xR 5K g 7l
E EEEME Z BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET TAET TAET FAET
At 1 April 2015 RZT—hE
MA—H 180 9,827 5,418 15,425
Deferred tax charged to the FRAEZAERER
consolidated income statement MR B EER B
during the year (note 10) (Bt zE10) — = 1,630 1,630
Withholding tax on repatriation of Bl fff /& 2 =) [& it} F
earnings from subsidiaries in the LRk
PRC — — (2,879) (2,879)
Exchange realignment P& 5 3 & — (398) — (398)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—XRE=A
Eg—E 180 9,429 4,169 13,778
Withholding
taxes on
Accelerated undistributed
tax Asset profits of PRC
depreciation  revaluation subsidiaries Total
DEMBAT
IniE A x5 il i F
Eil- BEEM Z2ENH gt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T#ERT T#ERT TER
At 1 April 2016 RZFE—RF
MA—H 180 9,429 4,169 13,778
Deferred tax charged to the FRNEFE BT K
consolidated income statement 0 B /O3 3T B I8
during the year (note 10) (Bt 5£10) — — 1,711 1,711
Withholding tax on repatriation of 7 Bl fff /& 2 &) [ & F
earnings from subsidiaries in the EETEME
PRC — — (1,939) (1,939)
Exchange realignment 0E 5 3 & — (565) — (565)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+t4$=H
=+—H 180 8,864 3,941 12,985
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25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings accrued after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5% (2016: 5%). In estimating the withholding
taxes on dividends expected to be distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors
have made an assessment based on the factors which
included the dividend policy and the level of capital and
working capital required for the Group’s operations in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately HK$27,918,000
(2016: HK$28,805,000).

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in
Mainland China and Indonesia of HK$36,383,000
(2016: HK$68,534,000) and HK$16,271,000 (2016:
HK$23,270,000), respectively, that will expire in five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of losses of
HK$16,271,000 (2016: HK$91,804,000) as the directors
consider that it is uncertain whether sufficient taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised. There are no income tax consequences
attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to
its shareholders.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBRRMNE(E)

31 March 2017
—F—+F=HA=+—H

EEHIE (=)

R H B E - R AR B K BE K AL 2 Ah
FIEECERIEREETRZRKRE
1 BUI0%TENH - ZRER=ZZEE
NEFE—A—HBER TEAR_ZEZL
F+_A=1+—"BRBRELZEF - fu
BAEEINEEEE 2 A BRI
WL AR EEEAENRBE -
REBZERAMRE B (ZF—KF:
5%) ° Ef At ZERBEARERZHTE A
A —_EENF—A—BHEELENET
TEHRZER EFMAMNTBENEE &35
EFHBEEREREEAEELELEA
BRKMBEAREEESKIEZERE -
AERELEREAENRBERNERSB A
AIZRENESEZERAEAEEY
27,918,000/% jT (= F — /<4 : 28,805,000
B TT) e

REBBARPEAERNEEEZH
15 5 18 9 Bl 436,383,000/ ;T (—Z — /X
F : 68,534,000/ JT) &16,271,000/% JT
— T — ;N4 123,270,000 T) R R E
WEE AERKEAGRERTER - &
ERBTHETHE B FERE & F K 85
A 7 AR B T8 85 1816,271,0008 T (=
— 75 4F 1 91,804,0005%8 7T) © BT LA IF 4%
RIELEHREEE - AQ A A H IR E k2%
fE BB EM ST S RER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

26. ISSUED CAPITAL

27.

26. EETKRE

2017 2016
—E—tF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEX FHE T
Authorised: ETE RS -
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000 %
HK$0.01 each BREEOBITZ
R 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER:
499,680,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 499,680,000/%
each HREE.0IE T Z
TR 4,997 4,997

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the aggregate of the nominal value of the
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
in August 2003, and the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor and
the existing 1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as
fully paid, at par.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations,
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to transfer
a certain of their profits after tax, as determined under
the PRC accounting regulations, to the statutory surplus
reserve, until the balance of the reserve reaches 50%
of their respective registered capital. Subject to certain
restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the
statutory surplus reserve may be used to offset against
accumulated losses.
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28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Deregistration of a subsidiary

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BHEBRRNE(E)
31 March 2017
—F—+tF=FA=+—H

28. MEHERERMEE

FEHFBEEXD
(i) EH—EHEZLE

2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets/liabilities disposed of: FIENEE BEFE:
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR - 'e & HME KK 653
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEET B E Rk H b & FIE (809)
Tax payable & 15 /i 18 (1,630)
(1,786)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve PERF BN EE 2 IR 6,955
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary (note 7) EE—HENB ARz EE
(Mt 5E7) 5,169

There was no net inflow/outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the deregistration of a
subsidiary during the year ended 31 March 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
purchased a motor vehicle at a consideration
of HK$695,000 which was settled by cash of
HK$550,000 and disposal of a motor vehicle at a
consideration of HK$145,000.

As at 31 March 2016, HK$513,000 out of the
aggregate considerations for disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment of HK$2,191,000 was
remained unsettled and recorded in “prepayments,
deposits and other receivables” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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RE-R—AE=A=+—HILF
Rl m AR EIBARNR S
RREEEARRA S HFH -

(i) BE-_FTE—~"E=A=+—8IL#&
ER AEEBA-—HIE - RE
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RELA o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

29.

30.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29. HAEE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities MRS EIR - A B I ) 1 R B
not provided for at the end of the reporting period (2016: CERIRBBE(ZZE—RNF E)-
Nil).
As at 31 March 2017, corporate guarantees to banks to RZE—tEtF=A=+—H ' A2A
the extent of HK$647,750,000 (2016: HK$597,375,000) RARQRE T HE LR MRIRTREH
were given by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the 647,750,000 (== — 7< £ : 597,375,000/
Company for banking facilities granted to the Company ) AEER UBREBR TR RAR
and certain subsidiaries of the Company, which were AETHBARMRITHEREER  EF
utilised to the extent of approximately HK$143,050,000 R R & H R B A %9143,050,0005% 7T (=
(2016: HK$197,900,000) at the end of the reporting period T — X4 197,900,000 7)) (K 3£ 21) ©
(note 21).
COMMITMENTS 30. 12
The Group had the following capital commitments at the AEBRBERRZEREENT
end of the reporting period:
2017 2016
—F—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&ET FAET
Contracted, but not provided for: 2 ET 418 KRB
Construction of factories and purchases ZER/IAER 2 ENM B
of machinery and equipment for the BERBEREME
Jiangxi Project 14,471 354
Construction of factories and purchases ZERENEREHE ZH =
of machinery and equipment for the NIBE S RFE
investment project in Indonesia 2,578 10,035
Purchases of items of machinery and BEMRERREEE
equipment 4,006 863
21,055 11,252
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The directors are the key management personnel of the
Group. Details of their remuneration are disclosed in note
8 to the financial statements.

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

Financial assets — Loans and receivables

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BHBRNE(E)
31 March 2017
—F—+tF=FA=+—H

31. AEANT RS
BEAAEE Y TEEBALR - HEF
B 2 54530 B 6 3R 5 B S R o

32. &M TREYE

EESMIAREESHRNETEDT

EMEE —HERREBWERX

2017 2016

—E—tHf —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET THE T

Accounts and bills receivables EWERREE 125,451 111,523
Financial assets included in prepayments, %I AFEfTZIE « & & & HE

deposits and other receivables EURFHEEE 10,130 5,477

Cash and cash equivalents HekBReSEHEIER 290,934 255,413

426,515 372,413

Financial liabilities — Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

EHMAER —REHEAFIRHE
REE

2017 2016

—E—-tH AN

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Accounts payable J& 151 BR 5K 135,284 133,423
Financial liabilities included in accrued HIAFERT BE K& H b & 5K

liabilities and other payables HH AR 23,069 21,442

Interest-bearing bank borrowings SFERITE R 143,050 197,900

301,403 352,765

The directors consider the carrying amounts of all financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
approximate to their fair values as at the end of the
reporting period largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.
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MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as accounts and bills receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
available-for-sale investments, cash and cash equivalents,
accounts payable, financial liabilities included in accrued
liabilities and other payables, derivative financial
instruments and interest-bearing bank borrowings, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
liquidity risk and credit risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-
bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risk. The interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash
and cash equivalents are stated at amortised cost and
not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest
income and expenses are credited/charged to the income
statement as earned/incurred.

150

33.

HHEBERZBERBR

AEENTIZSRIABEFERTE
FERERREFERE - ZF2®T
A FTZENMAREEAEHZEMTE
T AKRERARURERERE BN
KB RERAEAGEEREFRESNE
MEE AHLERE RERREF
BEE EBNEX EBFAaEREME
NREMEBEENERMAE TEERT
ANFRRTERESEEMEREE
REE TTRELEREREL -

AEBeRIAZIEZRRIIKEHMEX
R SMNERR  RBESERBRKEEE
Bl EFeFHIHEEESHEH
B2 B - BT

I 2= 3 g
AEBERARZT SN EEHEAREE
EAREEZIBHMNERFENRITERES
8 o

AEETFHEENERZEEENEE
EFERERE - sFRETERKEEREE KR
CEEBEEREBEHANAAR mASE
HEfH FERARTHRERBZRIEZE
BER DELSTNER K -



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —F—tHF 4%,

EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED 35 (B i) &= i B IR A Al r’

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s net profit (through
the impact on floating rate borrowings).

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BEERME(E)
31 March 2017
—F—+F=HA=+—H

HMBEEEREZBERERBIE

V=)
(4

A %= b (2)
TRETHAEEBEERFAE K
SEAENMNRAZIEEEZEHNEZE
ERREEBMHRAIL

Increase in
interest rate Decrease
(basis points) in net profit
F) 2= 5 hn (B 2G) &t F) s
HK$'000
FET
2017 —T—+tF 100 1,194
2016 —E-—RF 100 1,652

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from a substantial portion of sales or
purchases by operating units in United States Dollars (“US$")
and RMB. As the foreign currency risk arising from sales
and purchases can be set off with each other given that
the Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US$, the Group
believes its exposure to exchange rate risk is minimal. It
is the policy of the Group to continue maintaining the
balance of its sales and purchases in the same currency.
However, as the functional currency of the PRC subsidiaries
is RMB and the Group’s financial statements are reported
in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a translation credit/
(debit) to the exchange fluctuation reserve as a result
of RMB appreciation/(depreciation). The majority of the
Group’s operating assets are located in Mainland China
and denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors the
foreign exchange exposures and will consider hedging the
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.
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MBERRNE(E)

31 March 2017
—FE—+F=HA=+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s net profit (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities):

33. A EEZBERBEK

(#&)

51 BE LI ()

T 551 A B 85 B 5 50 3R 45 39 5 7 i
RzABEH (L MEERETE)
T 4 7 o B ) 0 ¥ (e O 6 6
ERABEATEED) -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
exchange rate net profit
i SR
(FB) (B D)
HK$'000
FET
2017 Tt F
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WA THE AREAE 3% 311)
If HK$ weakens against RMB WAETHELAREEE (3%) 311
2016 —E-RF
If HK$ strengthens against RMB fif BT i AREFAE 3% (451)
If HK$ weakens against RMB WABETHAREEE (3%) 451
Liquidity risk & & B kR

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the

maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., accounts and bills receivables) and the
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other banking facilities. The directors
have reviewed the Group’s working capital and capital
expenditure requirements and determined that the Group
has no significant liquidity risk.
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MBERRKE(E)

31 March 2017
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. B EMEERB ZHERB SR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) ()

mENE & E bR (E)
RBERAR AEBEERBAORIR
NRFAEZERBEIHBERLT

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2017 —E—+tHE

On demand or
within one year

BERS—FR

HK$'000

TERT

Accounts payable JE 5 BR 3K 135,284
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities H A FEET BB K B A RIEH

and other payables SRt BE 23,069

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITE R 143,154

301,507

2016

On demand or
within one year

EEKE—FR

HK$'000

FET

Accounts payable JE 1 BR X 133,423
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities A FEE BE R E AL FE N FRIEH

and other payables SRBE 21,442

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITE R 198,159

353,024
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31 March 2017
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is generally no
requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2017 and 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is

total current assets divided by total current liabilities. The
Group's policy is to keep the current ratio above 1.

154

33.

HHEBERZBERBR

[ g3
(é@ /)

15 & & b
AEBEERAREERFNE=T7E
TR -AEBEHUBRETARZRZH
FMERFPETEERSE - Lo - B
FEBTEFEREER -

HRASEEERAILREERTINE=
TEARS  Bilt—&BERLTETEN
SEMm e

AEEEMEREEREREAR S
FEBREREMNRE ZERhHEMER
REMEENEREE)ZEERRTD
REH T RENK  FAAXZ X AR R
HMERZFLAZKREE-

BEXxEH
AEBEREAZIZARAREAS
BEBABEEREZRN  URF
BALERGERREEKRE  UABHEXH
REIFHRESKRREE -

AEEREEERAEGREBEEL
RREBEEEEARBRELAE -
REFAABEARRE  AEEAEA
HABIXNTERRZEE REREESR
AEBETHR RBE_T—LtFR=
E-RF=ZA=t—BLFER EH
ERBEAZAR BRIEFLEZSD -

AEBUARBLEUAL RS EER N
RRDABHBEEREERN - AEEZ
HRBERE L REFRA L ZKFE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =& —tF &R EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 (B B%) = R B IR A Al rf

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BHBRNE(E)
31 March 2017
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34. KABIM B AR

A BAA A A R & HR B 25RO &
BERT:

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E— R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAB T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZI&E 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries & BT B A 1,624,836 1,374,034
Loan to a subsidiary BT B AT 4,500 61,675
Prepayments SERNE O] 109 151
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEHEEE 365 575
Total current assets MEEELE 1,629,810 1,436,435
CURRENT LIABILITIES HEBEE
Due to subsidiaries R NENE] 867,965 660,114
Accrued liabilities EiraE — 15
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRIBITEX 4,500 61,675
Tax payable JE 3% 18 1,276 1,251
Total current liabilities mEBERE 873,741 723,055
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 756,069 713,380
Net assets BEFE 799,437 756,748
EQUITY BX
Issued capital B 1T R AR 4,997 4,997
Reserves (note) fit (M) 794,440 751,751
Total equity BEREE 799,437 756,748
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

35.

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

3. KA BIRRRAFT =

Note

Bt £

B &
AABFEBZHMELOT
Share
premium Capital Retained
account reserve profits Total
& &3
mER SAFMHE BEZH “Et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET THT

At 1 April 2015 RZZE—AFMA—H 472,586 43,088 223,645 739,319
Profit and total comprehensive F A F R 2 ERELE
income for the year = = 104,873 104,873
Final 2015 dividend T -hERAKRE 1 = = (32,479) (32,479)
Interim 2016 dividend —E-REHRHERE 1 = = (59,962) (59,962)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 R=ZT—~"F=A=+—H
EZZ—X"FWA—A 472,586 43,088 236,077 751,751
Profit and total comprehensive F A s F R 2 W 48R
income for the year — = 142,625 142,625
Final 2016 dividend ZE-REREKE 1 = = (24,984) (24,984)
Interim 2017 dividend —T—tEHERE 1 = — (74,952) (74,952)
At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+HF=A=+—H 472,586 43,088 278,766 794,440

The capital reserve of the Company represents the
excess of the then consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the
Reorganisation over the nominal value of the share capital
of the Company issued in exchange therefor. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the capital reserve
may be distributed to the shareholders of the Company,
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 20
June 2017.
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